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FY 2022 Key Highlights

Revenue Adjusted EBITDA’

£35.9 million £1.6 million

FY 202L1: £35.8 million Fy 2021 £3.1 million

Adjusted EPS™ Average spend by top 100 advertisers

2.58 pence £0.28 million
Fy 2021 8.27 pence eq Ch

Fy 2021: £0.30 million each

* Calculated as profit after tax before charging interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation in the financial
year, adjusted for share-based payments, other, non-recurring income and costs which were IPO related.
This metric provides a more comparable indication of the Group's core business performance by removing
the impact of non-trading items that are reported separately. Please refer to note 8 for further details.

** Adjusted to exclude costs related to the IPO in the comparative year, other, non-recurring income and
share-based payments. Please refer to note 13 for further details.
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How Dianomi adds value
to digital advertising

The Dianomi Contextual Algorithm creates a virtuous circle of
premium advertising targeted at affluent audiences viewing
premium content.

Premium
Publisher

Inventory Affluent
Audience

Dianomi

Higher Contextual

Publisher A|gorithm
Revenue

Premium
Advertisers

Higher
Engagement

By engaging audiences precisely with contextual
advertising placed alongside relevant content,
Dianomi aims to ensure that premium publishers and
premium advertisers both gain financially.

Dianomi



Strategic
Report

Premium positioning,
away from the crowd
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DidNoOMmMi

To be the Number One Contextual Media
Platform across the Premium Business,
Finance and Lifestyle verticals.

To harness the power of context and data to
drive advertising audience engagement and
publisher yield.

Dianomi's Contextuadl
Media Platform

Future-proofed for privacy regulation and
cookie deprecation.

Scalable across 100% of impressions, formats,
browsers and devices.

Real-time optimisation based on advertisers’ campaign
objectives/goails.

Audience targeting based on the content’s advertising
engagement score.

Delivers improved performance compared to
third-party cookie-based audiences.

Dianomi






Chairman’s Statement

Michael Kelly, Non-Executive
Chairman, reviews Dianomi's
performance over the year
and looks ahead to future
opportunities.

Dianomi

Introduction

Over the course of 2022, Dianomi demonstrated its relevance
and its resilience during a year characterised by increasingly
challenging macro-economic conditions which have affected
the advertising industry across the board. In spite of the
difficult backdrop, Dianomi has been able to maintain its
impressive list of premium advertisers and publishers. We are
proud of our client “stickiness”, as underlined by the recent
renewal of our contract with Reuters as their exclusive content
recommendation partner. We are able to count some truly
global premium advertisers amongst our new advertisers this
year including Goldman Sachs, EY and Porsche. Advertisers
are being more selective in how they spend but Dianomi
remains a contextual partner of choice. Our platform delivers
innovative ways to monetise inventory for publishers and well as
measurable and transparent results for our advertisers.

We feel strongly that in turbulent times, publishers and
marketers value high quality partnerships with measurable,
premium results and we are committed to maintaining high
standards and ambitious goals.

The prospects for market growth remain encouraging. Industry
forecasts suggest that, despite the challenges of 2022, digital
advertising spend is set to experience strong growth in 2023,
with E-marketer predicting that digital advertising spend in the
US Financial Services Sector will increase by 13% in 2023 to
$36 billion.



“We remain committed to diversity
within our workforce. We aim to
ensure our clients and suppliers
share our values and aspirations
and turn away those advertisers
and publishers who we feel do not.”

Our Strategy

Our vision remains unchanged - to be the #1 Contextual Media
Platform across the Premium Business, Finance and Lifestyle
verticals, harnessing the power of context and data to drive
advertising audience engagement and publisher yield.

With major internet browsers such as Safari and Firefox already
blocking third-party cookies and Google Chrome expected to
phase them out completely by 2024, marketers must consider
preparing for a cookie-less future and adapt instead to a
contextual approach. We boast a premium positioning in the
contextual space and have the platform and technology to offer
transparency on performance for publishers and advertisers
alike. Dianomi’s platform provides a cookie-free solution to
deliver improved results as our contextual algorithms facilitate
access to premium inventory and deliver tailored content most
likely to meet advertiser metrics as well as delivering very
measurable audience engagement.

Trials of our programmatic offering are ongoing. Programmatic
represents an attractive solution for advertisers and publishers
in terms of speed and efficiency. The technology facilitating
programmatic is constantly evolving and in the coming year we
are expecting to continue to increase the number of customers
engaging programmatically.

ESG

We appreciate the importance of scrutiny of our ESG
credentials from investors and stakeholders. We remain
committed to diversity within our workforce. We aim to ensure
our clients and suppliers share our values and aspirations and
turn away those advertisers and publishers who we feel do
not. Each new supplier is sent a copy of our policy and code of
conduct which sets out our expectations in the areas of, inter
alia, ethical supply and people practices including diversity and
inclusion as well as environmental responsibility.

In February 2023, we were delighted to announce a new
partnership with the World Media Group, an alliance

of international media organisations championing and
supporting trusted journalism. Members of World Media
Group are all considered trusted and premium publishers of
Jjournalistic content. The organization has four key pillars, two
of which are specifically focused on ESG, being (1) promoting
sustainable practices in marketing and (2) driving inclusion
and engagement. We are also a member of the Financial
Communications Society in the US, a charity run by and for
financial marketing, communications and media professionals
and whose philanthropic mission is centered on financially
supporting a wide range of children’s charities.

Overview on Financials and Outlook

We delivered revenue for the full year of £35.9 million, flat

on last year. This performance is in the context of a difficult
economic backdrop as well as a change in spending patterns
within our advertiser base. Adjusted EBITDA" of £1.6 million
and Adjusted EPS™ of 2.58 pence show a decrease on

the prior year and were affected by a contraction in gross
margins due to publisher mix as well as increased investment
in people and marketing. This year has started in line with our
expectations and | am confident that the quality of Dianomi's
offering will continue to attract publishers and advertisers
alike. We are entering a new chapter for Dianomi given recent
management changes which has led to new talent joining the
Company providing fresh impetus across the business. Our
pipeline of new prospects is good and we continue to enjoy

a strong balance sheet which underpins our ability to invest

in strategic opportunities as they arise. However, due to the
ongoing uncertain market outlook and in order to maintain
our profit margins, the Company is ensuring that its cost base
is appropriate for an unpredictable trading environment. |
would like to thank our shareholders for their continued support
and the team for their hard work over the year and their
commitment to deliver in 2023.

Michael Kelly
Non-Executive Chairman
19 April 2023

Calculated as profit after tax before charging interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation in the financial year, adjusted for
share-based payments, other, non-recurring income and costs which
were IPO related. This metric provides a more comparable indication
of the Group's core business performance by removing the impact of
non-trading items that are reported separately. Please refer to note 8
for further details.

Adjusted to exclude costs related to the IPO in the comparative year,
other, non-recurring income and share-based payments. Please refer
to note 13 for further details.

1Ld0d3d D1931VHLS | 1d0d3d TVNNNY 2202



Chief Executive's
Statement

Rupert Hodson, Chief
Executive Officer,

reviews the Company’s
performance in 2022 and
sets out the goals for 2023.

Dianomi

Introduction

2022 started well for Dianomi but as the year progressed, the
business was affected by a more difficult macro environment
and challenging financial markets which have presented
headwinds for a number of our clients. However, | am pleased
to report that, with our focus on delivering results for the most
valuable brands and publishers through relevance and reach,
we continue to have strong client retention rates with annual
advertiser and publisher churn (calculated on a revenue
basis) of less than 6 per cent. and 3 per cent. respectively.
Furthermore, we continue to welcome new top-tier premium
advertisers as well as publishers to the platform which is
testament to our model and our team. This year, we added
Goldman Sachs, Porsche, and EY as notable new advertisers
as well as a number of well-known publishers such as Fox
News and Sky News. As we transition to a cookie-less world,

| believe that our relevance and position remains unchanged -
we continue to be the contextual native advertising partner of
choice in our specialist sectors of business and finance.

We recently announced that Raphael Queisser and Cabell De
Marcellus, both co-founders of Dianomi, have stepped down
from the Board and their roles as COO and CTO respectively.
Dianomi marks its 20th anniversary this year and Raphael
and Cabell have been instrumental in supporting the business
over the last two decades. They will continue to support the
business as advisers to me and both will remain significant
and supportive shareholders. | am extremely grateful for their
friendship, hard work and vital contribution to the genesis and
success of Dianomi since its inception. It has been a great
pleasure to work with them over the years and | look forward to
their continued support.

We are excited about opening a new chapter in the Dianomi
story. Ken Johnston has re-joined the Group in the US as

global head of sales. Ken has many years of experience in
Financial Services marketing and was previously at Meta and
Quantcast. Ken worked for Dianomi between 2010 and 2014
and was the first sales person employed by Dianomi in the US.
Ken is a thought leader in financial services marketing with an
excellent 20 year track record of driving growth. A number of
other personnel changes have also been made within the Group
to ensure that Dianomi’s cost base is aligned to the current
environment and that resources are optimised so that we are in
a strong position when the market recovers.

Programmatic

We continue to develop our programmatic offering and,

during the year, we hired a new Head of Programmatic. Whilst
the development roadmap is taking longer than expected,

we undertook trials where we transacted with a number of
premium clients such as Morgan Stanley and Porsche on this
offering and post year end saw further success with the likes of
Citi and Square. The technology is constantly improving which
will enable us to extend this service to a much wider pool of
clients and partners, both existing and new.



“We believe that we have an enormous
opportunity to be the contextual partner of
choice in the direct and programmatic space
within the premium end of the market.”

We believe that we have an enormous opportunity to be the
contextual partner of choice in the direct and programmatic
space within the premium end of the market. We further believe
that an enhanced offering will lead to a net increase in average
advertiser spend with Dianomi and an overall uplift in revenues
going forward.

Operational review

Our client focus remains the premium segment of the Business
and Finance sector where our client base today includes all of
the top 10 asset management companies in the US, 7 of the top
ten largest wealth management firms in the US and S of the top
10 largest US banks.

Our premium publisher base increased over the course of 2022
and by the end of the year we had 336 active publishers vs 326
at year end 2022. CNN Business, for whom we won the contract
to become the exclusive content recommendation partnerin
2022, now ranks as our number two publisher, and we are still
to roll-out across their app, giving scope for further growth.
Growth in impressions was strong, with total impressions of
48.8 billion for the year vs 40.9 billion last year. Revenue per
click ("RPC") was down slightly at 0.64 pence in 2022 vs 0.68
pence in 2022 due to an increase in impressions across Apple
News publishers, which tend to command a lower RPC.

During 2022, we had 387 active advertisers, down on last
year's 427. We are pleased to report a number of global
premium brands as new advertisers in 2022 including
Porsche, Goldman Sachs, and EY. Average spend across our
top 100 advertisers is down 9% for the year but this includes
financial newsletter publications who have faced challenges
in a period of market volatility. We continue to focus on driving
growth and scaling our business within our existing premium
advertiser base. With a number of key advertisers such as,
inter alia, Charles Schwab, JP Morgan, AJ Bell and the Ascent,
we have recorded a good ramp-up in spend over the period
demonstrating the scalability of the business.

Financial review

Group revenue was flat at £35.9 million (2022: £35.8 million)
with a slow-down in spend by our advertisers in the second half.

Mobile revenue for the year decreased from £18.6 million to
£16.9 million predominantly due to a decrease in RPC across
mobile properties. Video revenue also decreased from £1.9
million to £1.4 million. Video revenue tends to be tied to one-off
campaigns and one particular advertiser which we expected to
spend significantly in the second half of the year cut its spend
in 2022 vs 2022. We still believe that video represents a key
growth opportunity for Dianomi and hope to report improved
progress in the current year.

Revenue from the Group's new Lifestyle segment amounted
to £1.3 million (2022: £1.5 million). Lifestyle advertisers tend
to transact programmatically and this should increase as the
Group builds scale in this space.

Gross margin was down 160 basis points to 27.3 % largely due
to publisher mix with a larger contribution from CNN Business
which is now the second largest publisher for the Group. Gross
profit for the period was £9.8 million, a S % decline on the
previous year despite flat revenue year on year.

Adjusted EBITDA" of £1.6 million (2022: £3.1 million) and
Adjusted EPS™ 2.58 pence (2022: 8.27 pence) were down 48%
and B69% respectively, reflecting a contraction in gross margin
as well as investment in marketing and people, in addition to a
full period of costs associated with being a public company.

We currently have no borrowings and at the end of the year we
had cash of £11.7 million vs £10.3 million end of 2021

The Group is in the growth phase of its evolution and so the
Board is not proposing to recommend a dividend and instead
the Company will continue to preserve its cash resources so that
it has sufficient capacity to invest in the growth of the Company
and/or take advantage of strategic opportunities should they
arise.

Outlook

I would like to take this opportunity to extend thanks to our
team who have shown such commitment to the business and
have worked extremely hard to deliver a fantastic service to our
existing clients as well as onboard new ones during a period
of market uncertainty. The start of the year is in line with our
expectations, in spite of tough year-on-year comparisons.

| believe that we are well placed to benefit when there is a
return in advertiser confidence and are well positioned to
grow our market share through an increase in demand in both
direct and programmatic channels as well as through product
innovation.

Rupert Hodson
Chief Executive Officer
19 April 2023

Calculated as profit after tax before charging interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation in the financial year, adjusted for
share-based payments, other, non-recurring income and costs which
were IPO related. This metric provides a more comparable indication
of the Group’s core business performance by removing the impact of
non-trading items that are reported separately. Please refer to note 8
for further details.

Adjusted to exclude costs related to the IPO in the comparative year,
other, non-recurring income and share-based payments. Please refer
to note 13 for further details.

1Ld0d3d D1931VHLS | 1d0d3d TVNNNY 2202



10

Key Performance Indicators and
Business Model

Key Performance Indicators

Financial

2022 2021 Change
Revenue (Em) 359 35.8 +0.3%
Gross margin 27.3% 28.9% (5.5)%
Adjusted EBITDA" (Em) 16 31 48.4)%
Adjusted EPS™ (p) 2.58 827 (68.8)%
Net cash (Em) 11.7 10.3 +13.6%
Non-Financial

2022 2021 Change
Impressions (millions) 48,813 40,927 +19.3%
Average unique devices per month (millions) 447 412 +8.5%
Average revenue per click £0.64 £0.68 (5.9)%

Calculated as profit after tax before charging interest, tax and depreciation in the financial year, adjusted for share-based payments and other,
non-recurring income, and, for the year ended 31 December 2021, exceptional costs which were IPO related. This metric provides a more comparable
indication of the Group's core business performance by removing the impact of non-trading items that are reported separately. Please refer to note
8 for further details.

x
H

Adjusted to exclude share-based payments and other, non-recurring income, and, for the year ended 31 December 2021, exceptional costs related
to the IPO in the comparative year. Please refer to note 13 for further details.

Business Model

Dianomi enables premium brands to deliver native advertisements to a targeted audience on the desktop and mobile websites,
mobile and tablet applications and Apple News feeds of premium publishers.

The Group provides circa 400 advertisers, including blue chip names such as Aberdeen Standard, Invesco and Baillie Gifford,
with access to an international audience of over 400 million devices per month through its partnerships with over 300 premium
publishers of business and finance content, including blue chip names such as Reuters, CNN Business and WSJ, as well as
premium publishers of Lifestyle content, such as Condé Nast and Golf.com. Dianomi negotiates directly with these publishers,
entering into revenue share agreements which are typically 70/30 in the publishers’ favour but can vary according to the size and
nature of the publisher.

Advertising revenue is generated on a per-click basis, or a per view basis (with video advertisements) when a reader clicks an
advert on a publisher’s website; therefore, Dianomi's interests are aligned with those of both advertisers and publishers. Dianomi
collects the payment made by advertisers, retaining a share and passing the rest on to the publisher.

The Group has strict criteria for advertisers, ensuring the high quality nature of the adverts served to the audiences of publishers’
websites. The Group offers two core services to advertisers:

The first is an account managed service, where the advertiser has a dedicated account manager who helps with each advertising
campaign.

The second is self-service, where an advertiser who has previously been vetted by the Group, uses the Group's self-service
platform to create and manage campaigns online.

The Group may offer advice to advertisers on the pricing of their adverts to seek to optimise audience engagement. Often adverts
which are placed at a higher price per click are delivered more frequently, or at more optimal times, than lower priced adverts.
Advert optimisation is controlled by Dianomi's ad algorithm which places adverts on website pages depending on the native
content and the previous success of adverts to maximise audience engagement, clicks, views and revenue.

Dianomi



Financial Review

2022 2021 Change
Revenue (Em) 358 358 +0.4%
Gross profit (Em) 9.8 10.3 4.9)%
Gross margin 27.3% 28.9% (5.5)%
Adjusted EBITDA" (Em) 16 31 48.4)%
Adjusted profit before tax” 15 2.9 (48.3)%
Adjusted EPS™ (p) 2.58 8.27 (68.8)%
Operating cash conversion to adjusted EBITDA” 82% 111% (26.1)%
Net cash (Em) 11.7 10.3 13.6%

In order to provide better clarity to the underlying performance of the Group, Dianomi uses adjusted EBITDA, adjusted profit before tax and adjusted
EPS as alternative performance measures. Please refer to notes 8 and 13 for further details.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2022 together with the comparative period data for the year ended
31 December 2021, are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Revenue

Revenue remained flat year on year at £35.8 million (2021: £35.8 million), due to slower growth in new advertiser spend and change
in existing advertiser spend patterns due to a difficult macro environment. One notable change to the prior year was a decrease

in newsletter spend from £7.0 million to £4.3 million as advertisers adjusted their spend in response to a more challenging market
environment.

Mobile revenue from ads served to mobile devices decreased to £16.9 million, from £18.6 million in 2021 due to a decrease in
revenue per click across mobile properties. Video revenue also decreased from £1.9 million in the year to 31 December 2021 to
£1.4 million with lower spend from one particular advertiser contributing to the decrease.

Revenue from the Group’'s nascent Lifestyle segment amounted to £1.3 million (2021: £1.5 million) as many lifestyle advertisers
tend to transact programmatically, hence the Directors believe that this segment will grow once the Group’s nascent programmatic
offering builds scale.

Gross profit and margin

Gross profit represents the Group's share of revenue from publishers under the terms of the revenue share agreements that the
Group has with them. Gross profit decreased 4.9% to £9.8 million from £10.3 million, representing a gross margin of 27.3% (2021:
28.9%). The decrease was largely due to the mix of publishers, with a larger contribution from CNN Business which is now the second
largest publisher for the Group, but which is on a 80/20 revenue share in favour of the publisher with scope to increase Dianomi's
share as revenue grows.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to £3.0 million in the year to 31 December 2022 from £10.3 million in 2021. Included in
administrative expenses were share-based payments of £0.5 million (2021: £2.9 million of which £2.6 million were incurred as
a result of accounting for the fair value of share options exercised by employees at IPO). The increase outside of share-based
payments was primarily driven by increases in staff costs and IT expenses due to the increase in impressions across the Group's
publisher partners’ sites.

The Group does not capitalise costs relating to the ongoing support and development of its platform, these are included within
administrative expenses.

Group profitability

Adjusted EBITDA decreased to £1.6 million from £3.1 million in 2021 representing an adjusted EBITDA margin of 4.4% (2021: 8.7%).
The decrease in adjusted EBITDA reflected the decrease in gross margin, alongside the Group's investment in the platform and
people to support the current operations. To provide a better guide to the underlying business performance, adjusted EBITDA
excludes share-based payments, other, non-recurring income and IPO related costs in the prior year along with depreciation,
amortisation, interest and tax from the measure of profit.

Statutory profit after tax was £0.5 million (2021: loss of £0.5 million) with 2021 including the significant share-based payments and
costs incurred as a result of the IPO.

11
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Financial Review wontinued

Net finance income

Net finance income was £0.04 million compared to net finance costs of £0.04 million in 2021, reflecting the repayment of the loan
notes in issue shortly after the Group's admission to AIM in May 2021 and an increasing interest rate environment. The Group is now
debt-free and has no interest rate exposure.

Taxation

The Group had a tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2022 of £0.7 million (2021: tax credit of £0.1 million) which
predominantly related to the tax payable in the US. The tax credit arose in 2021 as a result of significant tax losses in the Company
due to the options which were exercised at the time of the IPO, offset to some extent by foreign tax payable of £0.5 million. For
further detail on taxation see notes 11 and 12 of the Financial Statements. Adjusted profit after tax, used in calculating adjusted
earnings per share, is shown after adjustments for the applicable tax on adjusting items as set out in notes 8 and 13.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 1.62 pence (2021: loss of 1.77 pence). Adjusted earnings per share
was 2.58 pence (2021: 8.27 pence). Adjusting items and their tax impacts are set out in note 13.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 1.46 pence (2021: loss of 1.77 pence). Adjusted diluted
earnings per share was 2.34 pence (2021: 7.65 pence). As at 31st December 2022, 1,721,551 share options were outstanding
(31 December 2021: 1,594,387).

Statement of Financial Position

Net assets as at 31 December 2022 totalled £11.8 million (31 December 2021: £10.1 million). Trade receivables increased to £7.5
million (31 December 2021: £7.2 million) and trade creditors decreased to £3.0 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
£3.8 million). Accruals, which predominantly reflect the payments due to the Group's publisher partners, increased to £4.5 million as
at 31 December 2022 from £3.6 million as at 31 December 2021.

The Group's net cash position increased 13.6% to £11.7 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: £10.3 million) The Group
enjoyed positive cash generation with net cash flow generated from operations of £1.3 million in 2022 (2021: £3.4 million). The
Group saw good conversion of adjusted EBITDA to operating cashflow of 81.5% assisted by some working capital benefit which is
expected to unwind in the first half of 2023. In May 2021, the Group repaid the £1.25 million loan note principal outstanding to BGF
Investments LP and is now debt-free.

Charlotte Stranner
Chief Financial Officer
19 April 2023

Dianomi



Section 172 Statement
For the year ended 31t December 2022

As required by Section 172 of the Companies Act, a director of
a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good
faith, would likely promote the success of the company for the
benefit of the shareholders. In doing so, the director must have
regard, amongst other matters, to the following issues:

. likely consequences of any decisions in the long term;
. interests of the company’s employees;

. need to foster the company’s business relationships with
suppliers/customers and others;

. impact of the company’s operations on the community
and environment;

. the company'’s reputation for high standards of business
conduct; and

. need to act fairly between members of the company.

The Directors remain committed to engaging with the Group's
stakeholders and considering their interests when making key
strategic decisions. Key stakeholders have been identified as
follows:

Employees

The Board acknowledges people are essential to the delivery
of our strategy and the Executive Directors work hard to
provide a collaborative and empowering working environment.
We invest in our employees from the outset working with

them to help them achieve their ambitions and grow within
the firm. Following our IPO we were able to award long-term
incentive share options to our employees so that they have the
opportunity to further share in the Company’s success.

The Company undertakes performance monitoring and
holds knowledge sharing and learning sessions as well as
other forums in which employees can share their views on
the business, including team, product and market changes
as well as new commercial opportunities. In addition, each
department meets regularly as a team giving all staff a
chance to provide feedback to the senior leadership team
either directly or via their manager. Since the easing of
COVID-18 restrictions, staff have been encouraged back to
the office and the Company hosts social events throughout
the year in order to maintain our strong focus on employees’
interests and wellbeing.

The Board and its Committees are ultimately responsible

for setting high standards for ethical behaviour which is
implemented, reviewed and monitored by the Executive
Directors. Through good governance, high standards of
conduct and informed decision making, the Board ensures
that the right decisions are made for the business, its
employees and other stakeholders. Policies and processes are
in place to ensure the Group complies with applicable laws
and regulation and these are reviewed regularly and updated
where necessary.

Shareholders

The Board recognises that relationships with our shareholders
are also key to the delivery of our strategy. The Board is
committed to open engagement with our shareholders and
provides all the necessary information needed to enable
decision making.

During the year the CEO and the CFO engaged with
shareholders through its publication of its annual and half year
financial results as well as other announcements during the
year. Furthermore, all shareholders were invited to attend the
Company’s Annual General Meeting ("AGM"). At the AGM we
encourage our shareholders to ask questions and engage in

a dialogue with the directors. In addition, all announcements
and reports and other key shareholder information is available
on the investor section of the Group's website which is updated
on a regular and timely basis.

Partners and Suppliers

The Group's partners are the publishers it works with. The
Board is committed to building trusted partnerships with the
Group's publishers. Each major publisher has a dedicated
team which meets regularly with the publisher and provides
quarterly business reviews to discuss, inter alia, their current
performance, new opportunities and new products.

The Group has long-standing relationships with suppliers
and treats all suppliers fairly. Contractual commitments to
suppliers are met within a timely manner.

Dianomi also looks to support sustainability with its buying
decisions.

Customers

The Group's customers are its advertisers. All significant
customer accounts have a dedicated client services
representative who meets with the customer regularly to
discuss their needs and ensures the Group is helping them
meet their objectives. The team regularly attends industry
events to build strong relationships with key customers, both
new and existing, and keeps abreast of relevant industry news
and insights in order to best serve the Group's customer base.

13
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Dianomi is exposed to a variety of risks and actively manages them through risk management procedures. The Group's risk
management framework is designed to identify and manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Details of the financial risk management objectives and policies of Dianomi and exposure to foreign exchange risk, market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk are given in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements. The material business and operational
risks that the Directors consider Dianomi to be exposed to include, but are not limited to, the following:

Potential Risk Description Mitigating Factors

Retaining a large premium customer and partner
base

The Group's strategy is to work with premium advertisers and
publishers and the success of the Group's business model is
dependent on retaining premium advertisers and publishers and
ensuring that advertisements are suitably placed with reputable
publishers. In the event that the Group's reputation or the
reputation or branding of either the advertisers or publishers that
the Group works with were damaged, this could have a significant
impact on the Group's reputation and the willingness of its
customer base and networks to continue to work with the Group.

Dianomi controls the quality of the adverts it serves and ensures
adverts placed are relevant to the content displayed on the
webpage. Consequently, Dianomi avoids issues commonly
associated with ‘clickbait” advertising, whereby unrelated or
low-quality adverts are served, with the potential to damage the
brands of publishers and the premium advertisers that appear
alongside the ‘clickbait’.

Publishers and advertisers are vetted before becoming partners
and customers of the Group to ensure Dianomi's premium focus is
not affected. Those considered to be a potential reputational risk
are turned away.

Inability to win new advertiser and publishers

The Group's success and revenue growth is dependent on adding
new advertisers and publishers, failure to do so could impact
financial growth and result in targets not being met. In the second
half of 2022 the Group experienced a slowdown in acquiring

new advertisers which it believes was largely due to the macro-
economic environment.

As well as its focus on the Financial Services and Business
sectors, the Group is currently rolling out to the Lifestyle vertical,
which is complementary in its focus on premium brands and
audiences. This expands the potential size of the Group's market.
Furthermore, the Group looks to continually add to and improve
the functionality of its platform and its product offering, including
its programmatic capabilities, providing further opportunities for
new publishers and advertisers.

Technological change and competition

The market that the Group operates in is fast paced and
competitive. Increased competition may cause price reductions,
reduced gross margins and loss of market share, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Competitors and new entrants may have greater financial and
marketing resources and may seek to develop technology that
more successfully competes with the Group's current software
and service offering, as well as potentially adopting more
aggressive pricing models and marketing campaigns, which may
place the Group at a significant disadvantage.

Dianomi continually invests in innovating the services and
products it provides. Furthermore, Dianomi continues to develop
its programmatic solution which will allow Dianomi's advertising
clients to purchase advertising media programmatically on a
viewable CPM basis as well allowing Dianomi to buy additional
inventory programmatically.

Dianomiis also investing in marketing to ensure presence at
industry events and targeted promotions.

An economic downturn and unexpected events can
impact advertiser demand and spend

Our revenue and results are highly dependent on overall
advertising demand and spending in the markets in which we
operate. Factors that affect the amount of advertising spending,
such as economic downturns and unexpected events, can make
it difficult to predict our revenue and could adversely affect

our business, results of operations, and financial condition.
Macroeconomic factors, including instability in political or market
conditions, as well as adverse economic conditions and general
uncertainty about economic recovery or growth could impact our
advertisers’ budgets and our publishers’ willingness to enter into
partnerships on favourable terms.

Despite macro-economic challenges over the past 12 months,
financial services digital advertising spend in the US is forecast
to grow 12.7% according to a report by e-Marketer, which

is our key market. Dianomi's current share of this market is
negligible, thereby providing significant opportunity to grow
and increase market share. Furthermore, Dianomi's platform
provides contextual targeting which does not rely on cookies, is
performance based and fully transparent which, in combination,
are key differentiators of the Group's offering. The Group's sales
and account management function works with advertisers to
adapt their messaging to suit the current climate.

Dianomi



Potential Risk Description Mitigating Factors

Reliance on a key distribution channel to maintain
growth and future revenues

The Group's monetisation of adverts through the Apple News
channel as an approved sales agent has expanded the Group's
existing relationships with publishers, but has also led to the
origination of new relationships with publishers previously not
engaged. Generation of revenue through the Apple News channel
represented 20 per cent. of the Group's revenue in 2022 (2021:
20%). If the Group were to lose its position as an approved sales
agent of advertisements by Apple, it would also have an adverse
impact on the Group's revenue and prospects and the ability to
seek new relationships with publishers that have access to the
Apple News application would be lost.

Dianomi is able to help monetise publishers’ content on Apple
News which they otherwise would not be able to do thereby
benefitting the publishers and their relationship with Apple.
Dianomiis in regular dialogue with Apple and continues to explore
ways of expanding its relationship by running video campaigns for
example.

The Group is also expanding its base of publishers outside of
the Apple News channel, thereby decreasing the % of revenue
generated by this channel.

Reliance on software and IT infrastructure

If the Group fails to detect or prevent fraud on its platform, or
malware intrusion into its systems or the systems or devices of its
publishers and their consumers, publishers could lose confidence
in Dianomi and the Group could face legal claims that could
adversely affect its business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Furthermore, insufficient hosting infrastructure or disruptions to
service from third-party data centre hosting facilities and cloud
computing and hosting providers could impair the delivery of
services and harm the business.

Dianomi performs regular security checks and reviews and has
various processes in place to mitigate cyber risk. Employees
undertake mandatory cyber security training. A Group fraud policy
and response plan is in place.

All technology infrastructure is reviewed and tested on a regular
basis to ensure sufficiency and appropriateness. A variety of
service providers is used to ensure stability across the business
and regular service reviews are undertaken. Post year end

the Group has migrated from a hosted data centre solution to
Amazon Web Services.

Compliance with laws and regulations and industry
requirements

The Group is subject to industry requirements and laws and
regulations related to data privacy, data protection and
information security and consumer protection across different
markets where the Group operates, including in the United States,
the European Economic Area ("EEA") and the United Kingdom.
Such laws, regulations and industry requirements are constantly
evolving and changing.

Dianomi is committed to data privacy and protection compliance
throughout its offering and has an in-house legal with expertise
in data protection. Relevant aspects of such laws and regulations
have been reviewed, and necessary actions have been taken.
External expertise has been sourced where necessary. The
Group continues to review, update and implement processes and
policies in order to meet industry developments and ensure the
Group satisfies the requirements under the applicable laws and
regulations.

Requirement to pay guarantees

When negotiating new contracts with publishers, in order to
be competitive Dianomi may offer to pay a specified minimum
guaranteed amount to the publisher. There are some publishers

with whom Dianomi currently has provided a minimum guarantee.

If Dianomi's performance under such contracts does not meet
the minimum guarantee requirements, its profitability could be
negatively impacted.

Dianomi only enters into such contracts after a comprehensive
review of the feasibility of meeting said guarantees, using
comparative data from other publishers with whom it currently
works and data provided by the new publisher if available. The
impact on the Group's cashflow and profitability is also considered
when coming to a decision.

Dependence on key personnel and employees

The continued success of the Group depends partly upon

the performance and expertise of its current and future key
executives and personnel. A lack of skilled workforce could result
in a drop in services levels and customer dissatisfaction, and
therefore have an adverse negative impact on the Group in
terms of its reputation. The Group currently has a relatively small

senior management team and workforce, whose skills, knowledge,

experience and performance in certain key areas are important
to the Group's ongoing success. The loss of such individuals, or
the failure to train and attract other high calibre individuals may
impact on the Group's business and the Group's ability to achieve
its growth targets.

The Group aims to provide a healthy and enjoyable working
environment. There are various incentive schemes in place for its
management team and other key personnel in order to ensure
employees are retained and rewarded. Furthermore, the Group
operates a long term incentive plan through which employees
are awarded share options so that they have the opportunity to
further share in the Company’s success. There are contractual
notice periods for all key staff, with longer periods for senior and
key team members.
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Board of Directors

Michael Kelly,
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Rupert Hodson,
Chief Executive Officer

Michael is the Co-Founder of Kelly Newman Advisors, LLC.
Previously, he served as the President and Chief Executive
Officer of The Weather Channel Companies. Prior to that,
Michael served as the President of AOL Media Networks, a
division of Time Warner, Inc. Before AOL, Michael served as
President of the Global Marketing group at Time Warner and
prior to that he was the Founder and Chief Executive Officer
of American Town Network, LLC. Until April 2021, Michael
was a hon-executive director of Seeen plc, a UK-based media
and technology company. Currently, Michael also serves on
the boards of directors of Cars.com, Quantcast Corporation,
American Town Network, LLC, Sliide and the American
Advertising Federation.

Charlotte Stranner,
Chief Financial Officer

Charlotte became Chief Financial Officer of the Group in March
2021 and was appointed to the Board on 27 April 2021 as
Chief Financial Officer. Before joining Dianomi, Charlotte was a
partner at previously AIM-quoted MXC Capital, a technology,
media and telecoms investor and adviser. Prior to MXC Capital,
Charlotte was a Corporate Finance Director at finnCap Ltd.
Charlotte also currently serves as an Independent Non-
Executive Director on the board of Elixirr International PLC

and was an Independent Non-Executive Director of K3 Capital
Group PLC until its sale in February 2023. She is a Fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
and graduated from UCL with a BA Hons in French and Italian.

Dianomi

Rupert Hodson was one of the three co-founders of Dianomi
and is responsible for driving the Group's expansion. Prior to
founding Dianomi in 2002, he spent five years at Interactive
Investor culminating in leading the commercial team. Rupert
began his financial career in 1994 at Petropavlosk PLC. Rupert
holds a BSc in Agricultural and Food Marketing from the
University of Newcastle-upon-Tyne.



Laura Shesgreen,
Independent Non-Executive Director

Matthew Singh,
Non-Executive Director

Laura has over thirty years of experience working with high-
growth companies in Europe and the USA. Laura started her
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers where she qualified as a
chartered accountant before moving into industry working as
the Chief Financial Officer at Pointcast and Evite Inc. In early
2007, Laura became the Chief Financial Officer and Vice-
President of Finance of Skype where she served for a number
of years, including when the company was acquired by private
equity and later by Microsoft. Laura currently serves as Chair of
the board of Stripe Technology Europe Limited, the boards of
associated companies of AA Ireland Limited and Extendia Retail
Ltd and certain subsidiaries, as well as serving as a member of
the Digital Advisory Board of Irish Life Assurance plc and Instech
Ltd.

Matthew works as an investor at BGF where he is responsible
for origination, execution and portfolio management of patient
growth capital investments in UK growth companies across
both the private and public markets. Matthew joined the
board of Dianomi in September 2019 following completion of
an investment in Dianomi by BGF. Since joining BGF in 2015,
Matt has completed numerous investments across multiple
sectors and also serves on the board of Flowline Limited. Prior
to this, he worked for EY in their Transaction Support team
and is a Chartered Accountant. He graduated with a BSc in
Mathematics, Operational Research, Statistics & Economics
from the University of Warwick.
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The Board of the Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance, which it considers are critical to business
integrity and to maintaining investors’ trust in the Company. This section sets out our approach to governance and provides further
detail on how the Board and its Committees operate. The Chairman’s role is to lead the Board of Directors and to be responsible for
ensuring that the Group adheres to and applies the standards of corporate governance. The Company applies the main principles of
the Quoted Companies Alliance (QCA) Code and complies with its detailed provisions. The corporate governance framework which
the Group operates, including Board leadership and effectiveness, Board remuneration and internal controls, is based upon
practices which the Board believes are proportional to the size, risks, complexity and operations of the businesses within the Group.
The key governance principles and practices are described in the statement below, together with the Audit and Risk and
Remuneration Committees’ reports on pages 24 to 28 and the Directors’ Report on pages 30 to 32.

The Company has adopted the QCA Code and is compliant with all of its principles. Disclosures required by the QCA Code have been
made both in this annual report and on our website. Further information on the Company'’s compliance with the QCA Code can be
found on the Group's website at www.dianomi.com, on the AIM Rule 26 page.

The Board is responsible for the strategic direction, investment decisions and effective control of the Group. During the year ended

31 December 2022 the Board comprised four Executive Directors, a Non-Executive Chairman and two Non-Executive Directors. Post
year end, on 15 March 2023, Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down from the board and their roles as
COO and CTO respectively. The Board is actively looking to recruit an additional Independent Non-Executive Director.

Biographies of each of the Board Directors, including the Committees on which they serve and chair, are shown on pages 16 and 17.
The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of its performance and that of its committees and individual Directors and is satisfied
that, between the Directors, it has an effective and appropriate balance of skills and knowledge, including a range of financial,
commercial and entrepreneurial experience. The Board is also satisfied that it has a suitable balance between independence (of
character and judgement) and knowledge of the Company to enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. Michael
Kelly and Laura Shesgreen are considered to be independent. No single Director is dominant in the decision-making process. The
Board is looking to recruit an additional Independent Non-Executive Director to improve the balance of Independent vs Non-
Independent Directors.

The Board aims to convene eleven times a year, with additional meetings being held as required. The majority of meetings were held
virtually to reduce travel from both an environmental and cost perspective, with certain ones held in person. Details of Board and
Committee meetings held during the financial year and the attendance records of individual Directors can be found below.
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Prior to their appointment, the Company informed each Director of the nature of their role, their responsibilities and duties to the
Company, and the time commitment involved. On appointment, each Director confirmed that, taking into account all of their other
commitments, they were able to allocate sufficient time to the Company to discharge their role effectively. The Board is satisfied that
the Non-Executive Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors each devote sufficient time to the Company and that there have been
no significant changes to their other commitments.

Attendance records for the Board and Committee meetings held during the year are shown below. These include both scheduled
Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee meetings and further meetings that were convened as required throughout
the year. Other members of the senior management and brand management teams, as well as advisers, attended Board and
Committee meetings by invitation as appropriate throughout the year.

Board Audit Remuneration
Michael Kelly 12 of 12 4of4 lofl
Laura Shesgreen 12 of12 4 0of4 lofl
Matthew Singh 12 of 12 3of4 lofl
Rupert Hodson 12 of 12 - -
Charlotte Stranner 12 of 12 4 of 4 -
Raphael Queisser” 12 of 12 - -
Robert Cabell de Marcellus” 12 of 12 - -

* Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down as directors on 15 March 2023.

The Company’s Articles of Association require that Directors hold office only until the first annual general meeting of the Company
following such appointment and in accordance with best practice in corporate governance, all the Directors will offer themselves for
re-election. The task of searching for appropriate candidates and assessing potential candidates’ skills and suitability for the role is
performed by the Board as a whole.
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The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group including the formulation and approval of the Group's long-term
objectives and strategy, the approval of budgets, the oversight of Group operations, the maintenance of sound internal control and
risk management systems and the implementation of Group strategy, policies and plans. While the Board may delegate specific
responsibilities, there is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board. Such reserved matters include,
amongst other things, approval of major corporate transactions, transactions with related parties and approval of the annual and
interim accounts.

The Board meet monthly to review performance. The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and clearly defined,
in line with the recommendations of the QCA Corporate Governance Code. Responsibility for overseeing the Board is the
responsibility of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing the implementation of the Company's
strategy and its operational performance.

The Group promotes a culture of integrity, honesty, trust and respect and all employees of the Group are expected to operate in an
ethical manner in all of their internal and external dealings. The staff handbook and policies promote this culture and include such
matters as whistleblowing, social media and anti-bribery and corruption. The Board takes responsibility for the promotion of ethical
values and behaviours throughout the Group, and for ensuring that such values and behaviours guide the objectives and strategy of
the Company. The Board believes that the current culture of the Group reflects the values promoted.

The Board retains control of certain key decisions through the Schedule of Matters reserved for the Board. The Board is responsible
for:

. Overall management of the business and monitoring performance against objectives;

. Overseeing the development of the Company'’s strategy and its risk management processes;
. Major investment and divestment decisions;

. Setting business values, standards and culture;

. Membership and chairmanship of the Board and Board Committees;

. Relationships with shareholders and other stakeholders;

. The Company’s compliance with relevant legislations and regulations;
. Approving results announcements and the annual report and financial statements; and
. Appointment and reappointment of the Company’s auditors.

Key Board activities during the year included:
. Overseeing the performance of the business;

. Reviewing progress across all elements of the Group's growth strategy, including the development of its programmatic solution
and winning new publishers and advertisers; and

. Reviewing the structure of the organisation and its people.

The Audit Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors, namely; Laura Shesgreen (Committee Chair and Independent
Non-Executive Director), Michael Kelly (Independent Non-Executive Chairman) and Matthew Singh (Non-Executive Director). At the
discretion of the Committee Chair, the CFO was invited to attend meetings of the Audit Committee during the year.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the annual and half-yearly reports to shareholders, other public announcements of a financial
nature, reviewing the likelihood of any fraud risks, reviewing the effectiveness of Dianomi's internal control and risk management
system and oversight of the relationship with the external auditors. The Audit Committee also reviews the appointment of the
external auditor, their independence, the audit fee, and any questions of resignation or dismissal. The Audit Committee met

four times during the year.

Dianomi



The Remuneration Committee comprises Michael Kelly (Committee Chair), Laura Shesgreen and Matthew Singh. Only members of
the committee have the right to attend meetings, however other individuals such as the CEO can be invited to attend at different
points during the year at the discretion of the Chair. The role of the Remuneration Committee includes responsibility for all aspects of
the remuneration of Executive Directors, including salary, annual bonus (where appropriate) and share-based payments and an
awareness of remuneration within the wider workforce. The Remuneration Committee met once during the year.

The Board makes use of the expertise of external advisors where necessary, to enhance knowledge or gain access to particular skills
or capabilities. Areas where external advisors are used include and are not limited to: legal advice, tax advice and recruitment.

The Board is committed to open and ongoing engagement with the Company’s Shareholders. The Board will communicate with
Shareholders through:

. The annual report and accounts;

. The interim and full-year results announcements;
. Trading updates (where required or appropriate);
. The annual general meetings; and

. The Company's investor relations website.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility (delegated to the Audit Committee) for establishing and maintaining Dianomi's system of
internal controls and will continue to ensure that management keeps these processes under regular review and improves them
where appropriate.

The Board's financial risk management objectives involve safeguarding Dianomi’s assets by identifying, managing, monitoring and
reporting the critical risks across the business. Dianomi has a risk register which identifies, monitors and reports on the critical risks of
the business. The risk register covers commercial, financial, operational, competitive, technology and other risks and is reviewed on at
least a bi-annual basis. The Board, via the Audit Committee, reviews the risks and ensures that they are being addressed.

The Board considers all Directors to be effective and committed to their roles. All Directors receive regular and timely information on
the Group's operational and financial performance. Ahead of the Board and Committee meetings, papers are circulated to all

Directors to ensure that they are fully informed and can participate fully in discussions. Directors keep their skillset up to date through
a combination of attendance at industry events, individual professional development and experience gained from other Board roles.

The Board was briefed on AIM Rules by its Nominated Advisors, Panmure Gordon at the time of the admission to AIM in May 2021.
The Board is kept up to date by its Nominated Advisor on any changes or updates to the AIM Rules. Directors are also able to take
independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties, if necessary, at the Company’s expense.

Outside interests and commitments of Directors, and any changes to these commitments are reported to and agreed by the Board.
To the date of this report there are no actual or potential conflicts of interest between any Director’s duties to the Company and any
private interests and/or other duties they may have.
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We pride ourselves on promoting a culture of diversity, inclusivity and collaboration across our business.

We are committed to developing a diverse workforce, an inclusive culture and the removal of barriers for underrepresented groups.

We champion women leaders both within the Board and senior management team as well as at all levels of the organisation. During
the year, 29% of our board was female, and following the departure of Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus post year
end, 40% of the board is female. At the date of this Annual Report and Accounts, at senior management level 27% are female (FY21:
36%) and our total workforce consists of 29% female employees (FY21: 29%).

We also champion people from ethnic minorities and as at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts, one of the Directors on the
Board comes from an ethnic minority background and our workforce consists of 21% (FY21: 24%) employees from an ethnic minority
background.

We are a people business, comprised of a talented team who value and respect difference. We remain committed to attracting,
developing, and retaining the best talent from a diverse range of backgrounds regardless of race, ethnicity, age, gender, sexual
orientation or physical ability.

We continue to strive for improvements in employee engagement as we see very clearly that employees are key to the success of our
business. In addition to aiming to be a responsible employer in our approach to pay and benefits, we continue to engage with our
teams to ascertain which training and development opportunities should be made available.

We invest in employee wellbeing to create and encourage an inclusive culture within the organisation. We have also introduced a
more formal approach to objective setting and performance management to support personal development across the business.

Other ways in which we look to engage with our employees and recognise their contributions include:

Following our IPO we were able to award long term incentive share options to all our employees so that they have the opportunity to
further share in the Company’s success. Share options continue to be used in attracting and awarding new and existing employees.

Throughout the year we arrange various activities for all employees with the focus on inclusivity and well-being.

With global offices in London, New York and Sydney, a collaborative approach is encouraged across all our employees.

We strongly believe in fostering a working environment where every employee is comfortable to contribute their thoughts and ideas
to the business.

Dianomi is a member of the Financial Communications Society ("FCS") in the US, a not-for-profit organisation dedicated to improving
professional standards in financial marketing communications through a mission of community, education and philanthropy.
Throughout the year we sponsored various events hosted by the FCS, including educational events and philanthropic activities.

Dianomi



Given the premium focus of our business, we are extremely selective with the advertisers and publishers we partner with, and only
work with high quality companies that are also environmentally conscious and have ethical business practices.

However, we do operate in a digital industry which relies on internet usage which does result in carbon emissions, and we are reliant
on equipment such as laptops and servers that all require mining for metals, which uses water and also results in carbon emissions.
Post year end, in March 2023, we have migrated from a hosted data centre solution to Amazon Web Services ("AWS") which on
average runs workloads with a lower carbon footprint than the average datacentre . According to AWS, they are 3.6 times more
energy efficient than the median of surveyed enterprise data centers in the U.S. and up to five times more energy efficient than
typical EU enterprise infrastructure. Amazon is also on path to powering its operations with 100% renewable energy by 2025 and is
committed to achieving net-zero by 2040. At Dianomi, are looking to identify other areas where we can reduce our direct and indirect
carbon emissions towards a target of net zero.

Travel was significantly reduced as a result of COVID-13, and we continue to operate primarily online and only travel when absolutely
necessary.

Employees now do a combination of remote and office-based working, and we try and ensure the consistency of environmental
practices through our offices. Our offices are easily accessible by public transport. For those travelling into the office by bike, the office
facilities in London include showers and storage, both free of charge for employees.

The landlord at our London office is committed to promoting sustainability through the types of energy, materials and the products
used within the building.

We operate a largely paperless office, however, we can always do better. All employees are advised that documents and emails
should not be printed, instead accessed via Google shared drives.

The Board believes that governance is central to the effective delivery of our mission and strategy. With this in mind, the Board is
committed to ensuring that all decision-making and the oversight it provides promotes Dianomi's success for the long-term benefit of
its shareholders, while being respectful of the interests of other key stakeholders. This includes our partners, customers and
employees. We seek to conduct all of our operating and business activities in an honest, ethical and socially responsible manner.
These values underpin our business model and strategy.

We are committed to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business dealings and relationships, with consideration
for the needs of all our stakeholders, including partners, investors, suppliers and employees. Client satisfaction rates, referral ratings
and staff retention levels are indicators of our collective success.

Our Board has a strong balance of industry knowledge and financial experience. We have established an Audit Committee and a
Remuneration Committee with formally delegated duties and responsibilities and with written terms of reference. From time to time,
separate committees may be set up by the Board to consider specific issues when the need arises.
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As Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee (“the Committee”), | am pleased to present our Audit and Risk Committee Report for the
year ended 31st December 2022.

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises three members, Michael Kelly, Matthew Singh and myself, Laura Shesgreen. Matthew Singh
and | are Non-Executive Directors of the Company, Michael Kelly is the Non-Executive Chairman. Both myself and Michael are
considered Independent. As Chair of the Committee with a background as a chartered accountant | have significant, recent and
relevant financial experience. The Committee’s biographies are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December 2022 and once prior to the date of this report during 2023. All
members of the Committee at the time of each meeting were present except for one meeting where Matthew Singh sent his
apologies. Charlotte Stranner, Chief Financial Officer, also attended all meetings by invitation. The external auditor attended part of
all meetings in 2022 at which the annual audit for 2021 and the 2021 Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, the interim report for the six months to 30 June 2022 and the audit plan for 2022 were respectively reviewed. Also
we held meetings in 2023 at which the annual audit for 2022 and the 2022 Annual Report and Financial Statements were
reviewed.

The full list of the Committee’s responsibilities is set out in its Terms of Reference, which are available on the Company’s website, and
is summarised below as follows:

. External audit (including the independence of the external auditor);
. Financial reporting;

. Internal control and risk management; and

. Reporting on activities of the Committee.

The Terms of Reference for the Committee are reviewed annually and approved by the Board.

The main items of business considered by the Committee during the year (and at its meeting in 2023 in relation to the 2022 audit
and Annual Report and Financial Statements) included:

. Consideration and approval of the 2021 financial statements of the Group and Company, the external audit report and
management representation letter;

. Review and approval of the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022;
. Review and update of the Group's risk register;
. A review of the year-end 2022 audit plan, consideration of the scope of the audit, the risks identified by the external auditor and

the external auditor's fees; and

. Consideration and approval of the 2022 financial statements of the Group and Company, the external audit report and
management representation letter.

The Committee has the primary responsibility for recommending the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing the findings
of the auditor’s work. The external auditor has direct access to me and other members of the Committee, without executive
management being present if they wish.

The Company’s external auditor is BDO LLP. Having reviewed the auditor’s independence and performance to date, the Committee
recommended to the Board that they be reappointed for the Company’s 2023 audit. BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint them as auditor will be proposed at the next annual general meeting.

During the year to 31 December 2022, fees paid to BDO LLP in relation to non-audit services amounted to £34k (2021: £42k).

The external auditor prepares an audit plan setting out how the auditor will audit the full-year financial statements. The audit plan is
reviewed, agreed in advance, and overseen by the Committee. The plan includes the proposed scope of the work, the approach to be
taken with the audit and also describes the auditor’'s assessment of the principal risks facing the business. Prior to approval of the
financial statements, the external auditor presents its findings to the Committee, highlighting areas of significant financial judgement
for discussion.

Dianomi
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The Audit and Risk Committee has considered the need for an internal audit function during the year and is of the view that, given the
size and nature of the Company’s operations and finance team, there is no current requirement to establish a separate internal audit
function.

The principal risks facing the Group are summarised on pages 14 to 15 of this Report. The internal controls of the Group are set out in
the Financial Reporting Procedures Manual which was reviewed and reported on by the Reporting Accountants in connection with
the IPO in May 2021. The Committee carries out an annual risk assessment and review of mitigating controls.

Laura Shesgreen
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee
19 April 2023
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As Chair of the Remuneration Committee (“the Committee”), | am pleased to present our report for the year ended 31st December
2022 which sets out details of the composition and activities of the Committee. Details of the remuneration paid to Directors during
the year are set out below.

The three members of the Committee are the three Non-Executive Directors: Laura Shesgreen, Matthew Singh, and myself, Michael
Kelly. The Board considers that | have sufficient relevant experience to chair the Committee, give the Board level positions currently
and previously held.

In the year ended 31 December 2022 the Committee met once and the meeting was attended by all three members.

The Committee works closely with the rest of the Board to formulate remuneration policy and consider succession plans and possible
internal candidates for future Board roles, having regard to the views of shareholders. The main duties of the Committee include the
following key responsibilities:

. Set remuneration policy for all Executive Directors, and, in the process, review and give due consideration to pay and
employment conditions throughout the Company, especially when determining annual salary increases;

. Approve the design of, and determine targets for any performance-related pay schemes operated by the Company;

. Recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior management; and

. Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and shareholders.

The Remuneration Committee determines the Company’s policy on the structure of Executive Directors’ remuneration. The objectives
of this policy are to:

. Reward Executive Directors in a manner that ensures that they are properly incentivised and motivated to perform in the best
interests of shareholders

. Provide a level of remuneration required to attract and motivate high-calibre Executive Directors of appropriate calibre

. Encourage value creation through consistent and transparent alignment of incentive arrangements with the agreed Company
strategy over the long term

. Ensure the total remuneration packages awarded to Executive Directors, comprising both performance-related and
non-performance-related remuneration, is designed to motivate the individual, align interests with shareholders and comply
with corporate governance best practice

Executive Directors’ remuneration packages are considered annually by the Remuneration Committee in line with the above policy
and comprise a number of elements:

Salaries are normally reviewed annually with effect from 1 January taking into account inflation, salaries paid to directors of
comparable companies, Group and personal performance.

In the year to 31 December 2021, Rupert Hodson, Robert Cabell de Marcellus and Raphael Queisser received commission payments
under a legacy plan which ceased as at 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Charlotte Stranner received a discretionary performance-related cash bonus. From
1 January 2022 onwards, all Executive Directors were eligible to receive discretionary performance-related annual cash bonuses.
No bonuses were awarded for the year to 31 December 2022.
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Currently taxable benefits comprise private health cover and life insurance. A defined contribution pension scheme is also available
and statutory minimum contributions are made for Executive Directors unless they opt out of the scheme. No changes were made to
benefits during the year.

Executive Directors may, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, be granted share option awards under the Company'’s
share option schemes. Any awards granted are subject to performance criteria.

Details of the Executive Directors’ service agreements are set out below.

Notice Notice
Date of Unexpired period by period by
Director contract term the company the Director
Rupert Hodson 18 May 2021 Rolling contract 6 months 6 months
Charlotte Stranner 18 May 2021 Rolling contract 3 months 3 months
Raphael Queisser” 18 May 2021 Rolling contract 6 months 6 months
Robert Cabell de Marcellus” 18 May 2021 Rolling contract 6 months 6 months

* Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down from the board and from their positions as COO and CTO respectively on 15 March
2023.

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined by the Board, based on a review of current practices in comparable
companies. The Non-Executive Directors do not receive any pension payments and generally do not participate in any incentive
schemes, with the exception of the Chairman who received some share options at the time of the Company’s IPO on AIM in May 2021
as listed in the sections below. In the light of best practice, it is not intended to grant any further share options to the Non-Executive
Directors in the future. The Company repays the reasonable expenses that Non-Executive Directors incur in carrying out their duties
as Directors.
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Each of the Non-Executive Directors signed a letter of appointment on 18 May 2021 which can be terminated by either party giving to
the other prior written notice of three months.

The following table summarises the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 3lst December 2022 and the year ended
3lst December 2021, in line with the Companies Act 2006 requirement. No share options were exercised by the directors in the year
(2021: nil):

FYa22
Bonus/

Salary  Commission Benefits Pension Total
Name £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Michael Kelly 50 = = = S50
Rupert Hodson 220 = 11 2 288
Charlotte Stranner 180 = = 1 181
Raphael Queissert! 220 = 7 3 230
Robert Cabell de Marcellus 220 - 2 4 226
Laura Shesgreen 60 = = = 60
Matthew Singh® S0 = = = 50

Total 1,000 = 20 10 1,030



Fyal

Bonus/

Salary Commission Benefits Pension Total
Name £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Michael Kelly 42 - - - 42
Rupert Hodson 205 96 7 2 310
Charlotte Stranner (appointed 27 April 2021) 133 53 - 1 187
Raphael Queisser 205 96 4 4 308
Robert Cabell de Marcellus 205 96 4 4 309
Laura Shesgreen (appointed 24 May 2021) 40 - - - 40
Matthew Singht®! 50 - - - 50
Total 880 341 15 11 1,247

[1] Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down from the board and from their positions as COO and CTO respectively on 15 March
2023.

[2] The fee in respect of Matthew Singh’s services as a Non-Executive Director is paid to BGF Investment Management Limited.

Certain directors were issued share options in the Company at the time of the Company’s IPO on AIM in May 2021. The options were
issued at fair market value with the exercise price being equivalent to the price at which the new shares were placed with investors at
the time of the Company’s IPO on AIM. Details of options issued to directors are listed below:

Exercise
Name Date of Grant Number Price (£)
Michael Kelly 24 May 2021 54,945 273
Charlotte Stranner 24 May 2021 175,824 2.73

There are no other options issued to Directors, either vested or unvested outstanding from previous periods.

The interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were as follows:

Fyaz2 Fya1

Number of Number of

ordinary shares ordinary shares
Shareholder held % held %
Raphael Queisser! 3632134 12.1% 3632134 121%
Rupert Hodsonl?! 2,820,512 9.4% 2,820,512 9.4%
Cabell de Marcellust® 2,789,572 9.3% 2,789,572 9.3%
Michael Kelly 294,432 1.0% 294,432 1.0%
Charlotte Stranner 20,000 0.1% 20,000 0.1%
Laura Shesgreen = = - -
Matthew Singh = = - -

[1] Includes shares held by Raphael Queisser connected parties.
[2] Includes shares held by Philioppa Hodson, Rupert Hodson's wife.

[3] Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down from the board and from their positions as COO and CTO respectively on 15 March
2023.

Michael Kelly
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
19 April 2023
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The Directors present their Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of Dianomi plc (the ‘Company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group has chosen, in accordance with section 414C(11) of the
Companies Act 2006, to include such matters of strategic importance to the Group in the Strategic Report which is set out on
pages 6 to 17 which otherwise would be required to be disclosed in this Directors’ Report.

The results for the year ended 31st December 2022 are set out in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. Revenue for the
year was flat at £35.9 million, (2021: £35.8 million). The financial position of the Group and Company is set out in the Group and
Company Statements of Financial Position. Future developments are set out in the CEO’s Report.

The Directors do not recommend a dividend at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: £nil).

The principal activity of the Group and Company is the delivery of premium native advertising for the financial services, technology,
corporate and lifestyle sectors by providing the technology behind “Sponsored Content” ad units on hundreds of premium websites.

Details of Directors who served during the year and biographies for Directors currently in office can be found on pages 16 and 17.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, service agreements and interests in the Company’s shares are provided in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 26 to 28.

In accordance with its Articles of Association the Company has entered into contractual indemnities with each of the Directors in
respect of its liabilities incurred as a result of their office. In respect of those liabilities for which Directors may not be indemnified, the
Company maintained a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance policy throughout the period. Although the Directors’ defence costs
may be met, neither the Company's indemnity nor the insurance policy provides cover in the event that the Director is proved to have
acted dishonestly or fraudulently. No claims have been made under the indemnity or against the policy.

In carrying out their duties in respect of going concern the Directors have reviewed current performance and forecasts, combined
with capital investment and expenditure commitments. A number of sensitivities have been applied and a range of downside
scenarios modelled. They have assessed the future funding requirements of the Group and compared them with available cash
balances.

Under all scenarios modelled the Directors are confident that the Group has sufficient resources to enable it to meet its liabilities as
they fall due. Having considered these forecasts and scenarios, the Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements,
a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, a minimum of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Post year end, in March 2023, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation announced that it had been appointed receiver to SVB
Financial Group ("SVB") and the Bank of England announced that it intended to apply to the Court to place Silicon Valley Bank UK
Limited (SVBUK') into a Bank Insolvency Procedure. At the time of the announcements, Dianomi had £3.9 million in deposits across
SVB and SVBUK. Shortly thereafter SVBUK was acquired by HSBC UK Bank Plc and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
("FDIC") and other regulators guaranteed all depositors in SVB, with First Citizens Bank subsequently acquiring Silicon Valley Bridge
Bank, N.A. from the FDIC, meaning that all deposits were safe and secure.

Dianomi



The Company has been notified that at close of business on 18 April 2023 the following parties were interested in 3% or more of the
Company's Ordinary share capital:

Number of

Ordinary shares
Shareholder held % held
BGF Nominees Limited (a/c BGF) 4,461,620 14.9%
Hargreave Hale Limited 3,868,132 12.9%
Raphael Queisser 3632134 12.1%
TB Amati UK Smaller Companies Fund 2,973,626 9.9%
Rupert Hodsonl?! 2,820,512 9.4%
Cabell de Marcellus 2,789,572 9.3%
Chelverton Asset Management 1,904,762 6.3%
Scobie Dickinson Ward 1,031,895 3.4%

[1] Includes shares held by Raphael Queisser connected parties.

[2] Includes shares held by Philippa Hodson, Rupert Hodson's wife.

The Group seeks to recruit, develop and employ throughout the organisation suitably qualified, capable and experienced people,
irrespective of sex, age, race, disability, religion or belief, marital or civil partnership status or sexual orientation. The Group gives full
and fair consideration to all applications for employment made by people with disabilities, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities.

Any candidate with a disability will not be excluded unless it is clear that the candidate is unable to perform a duty that is intrinsic to
the role, having taken into account reasonable adjustments. Reasonable adjustments to the recruitment process will be made to
ensure that no applicant is disadvantaged because of his or her disability. The Group's policies for training, career development and
promotion do not disadvantage people with disabilities.

The Group recognises and accepts its responsibilities for health, safety and the environment. The Group is committed to maintaining
a safe and healthy working environment in accordance with applicable requirements at all locations in the UK and overseas. The
Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the implementation of the Group policy on health and safety.

During the year, the Group made no political donations (2021: £nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable donations amounting to £21k (2021: £35k).

Information on the Group's financial risk management objectives, policies and activities and on the Group's exposure to relevant risks
in respect of financial instruments is set out in note 20 and 21.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 31 May 2023. A notice of the Annual General Meeting will be sent out to shareholders
separately to this Annual Report and Accounts.

The Directors who were in office on the date of approval of these financial statements confirm that:
. So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware.

. The Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.
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The Board appointed BDO LLP to act as Auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022. A resolution to reappoint BDO LLP as
Auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On 15 March 2023 the Company announced that Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell ("Cabell”) de Marcellus were stepping down
from the board and their positions as COO and CTO respectively. The departures of Raphael and Cabell were part of an internal
reorganisation involving a number of other personnel changes in order to ensure the optimal structure for the Group and align the
cost base to the current climate.

As at 31 December 2022, the share capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares of 0.002p each. Each share carries the right
to one vote at general meetings of the Company. The issued share capital of the Company, together with movements in the
Company's issued share capital is shown in note 23 to the Financial Statements. Ordinary shareholders are entitled to receive notice
and to attend and speak at general meetings. Each shareholder present in person or by proxy (or by duly authorised corporate
representatives) has, on a show of hands, one vote. On a poll, each shareholder present in person or by proxy has one vote.

Charlotte Stranner
Chief Financial Officer
19 April 2023
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards and have elected to
prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether they have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company'’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
statements are published on the Company’s website in accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the
Company's website is the responsibility of the directors. The directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the
financial statements contained therein.
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members of Dianomi plc

Opinion on the financial statements

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
31 December 2022 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

. the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards;

. the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice; and
. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Dianomi plc (the '‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended
31 December 2022 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and company
statements of financial position, the consolidated and company statements of change in equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and UK adopted international
accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We remain independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

. Analysing the Director’s assessment of going concern through analysis of the Group'’s cash flow forecast and other projections
through to 31 December 2024. This included assessing and challenging assumptions made in relation to revenues, associated
cash flows and expenses and any other cash related assumptions made through discussions with directors, completion of
lookback procedures to review accuracy of historic forecasts and comparison against post year-end results to date.

. Performing sensitivity analyses, and reviewing the directors’ reverse stress testing analysis, to consider cash flow changes if the
revenue forecasts were not achieved and the resulting impact on going concern.

. Considering whether any post-balance sheet events have occurred, which may impact going concern.

. Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements with reference to the requirements of the financial

reporting framework and the Directors going concern assessment.

. Reviewing the impact of the Silicon Valley Bank (SVB) collapse by sensitising the cashflow to exclude the Group's balance with
the bank as at year to determine the ability of the Group to meet its obligation as and when due.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.
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Overview

Coverage 91% (2021:99%) of Group profit before tax
97% (2021:97%) of Group revenue
96% (2021: 96%) of Group total assets

Key audit matters 2022 2021
Revenue recognition v v

Materiality Group financial statements as a whole
£547,000 based on 1.5% of revenue (2021:£536,000 based on
1.5% of revenue)

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including the Group'’s system of
internal control, and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements. We also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including assessing whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that may have
represented a risk of material misstatement.

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we assessed the audit significance of each reporting unit in the Group by
reference to both its financial significance and other indicators of audit risk, such as the complexity of operations and the degree of
estimation and judgement in the financial results. We identified three components within the Group, including the Parent Company.
Based on our scoping procedures, two components were considered to be individually significant with the remaining component
being non significant.

The Group audit team performed full scope audits on the two significant components being Dianomi Plc (the Parent Company) and
its subsidiary, Dianomi Inc. The financial information of the remaining non significant component was subject to analytical review
procedures performed by the Group audit team for Group reporting purposes.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit
addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition The Group's core revenue stream is advertising  Our procedures included the following:
revenue which is recognised at a point in time
(Note 2.4.1) T T —— clicged) P . Assessed whether the revenue recognition
o i policies adopted are compliant with the
There is an inherent fraud risk around requirements of the applicable accounting
incentive, opportunity, and pressure on standards.
management to manipulate revenue to meet ) ) )
g . Reviewed the historical revenue and gross
its targets/KPlIs. ) : :
profit margin trend and enquired of
The nature of the Group's revenue is driven management and obtained appropriate
based on a per-click basis initiated by an supporting evidence for results not in line
individual clicking the advertisement (the with our expectations.
customer) on the publisher’s (the supplier,
website ) & ¢ pplier) . Discussions with management regarding the
’ revenue process and reviewing the
In line with the Group's revenue recognition underlying contracts with customers.

process, clicks are downloaded from Exedra
(the company's developed platform) on a
periodic basis and are used to generate an
invoice and subsequent recognition of revenue.
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members Of D|Gnom| plC continued

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit

addressed the key audit matter

A risk exists that recorded revenue may not be - With the assistance of our internal IT

in line with information downloaded from the
platform. This is more likely as there is a
manual intervention between the Exedra
extraction and recording of revenue in the
General Ledger, hence the risk that revenue
that has not been earned/occurred may be
recorded in the General ledger.

A further risk was identified in relation to the
completeness of revenue whereby publishers
charges are not cross charged to advertisers.

specialists, a recalculation of revenue to be
recognised was performed using the
information on clicks generated from the
Exedra platform. We obtained supporting
documentation for any material reconciling
itemns between the recalculated revenue and
the revenue recognised by the Group.

Performed tests on the completeness and
accuracy of the price per click included on
the Group's report by selecting a sample of

related invoices and agreeing the invoice
price to the underlying contracts with the
customers.

As a result of the matters set out above and

given the volume of transactions and the
significance of revenue in the context of the
financial statements and the audit, we .
considered this to be a key audit matter.

Performed cut-off test by selecting a
sample of revenue recorded around the year
end and agreeing to the invoice date and
the date that the performance obligations
were satisfied, per the sales reports to
determine whether revenue was recognised
in the correct period.

. We agreed a sample of publisher clicks per
the Exedra platform to billings made to
advertisers to assess the completeness of
revenue.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed we do not
identify any matters to indicate that revenue
recognition was inappropriate.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We
consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a lower materiality
level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.
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Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole and performance

materiality as follows:

Group financial statements

Parent company financial

statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
Materiality 547,000 536,000 98,000 107,000
Basis for determining 1.5% of group revenue 1.5% of group revenue 1.5% of parent 1.5% of parent

materiality

company revenue

company revenue

Rationale for the
benchmark applied

Revenue has been
determined to be the
most relevant
performance measure
to the users of the
financial statements
given the Group's
current focus on
revenue growth.

Revenue has been
determined to be the
most relevant
performance measure
to the users of the
financial statements
given the Group’s
current focus on
revenue growth.

Revenue has been
determined to be the
most relevant
performance measure
to the users of the
financial statements
given the Parent
Company's current
focus on revenue

Revenue has been
determined to be the
most relevant
performance measure
to the users of the
financial statements
given the Parent
Company's current
focus on revenue

growth. growth.
Performance 410,000 402,000 73,000 80,000
materiality
Basis for determining 75% of group 75% of group 75% of parent 75% of parent
performance materiality. materiality. company materiality. company materiality.
materiality

Rationale for the
percentage applied for
performance
materiality

We set performance
materiality at 75%
based on our
expectation of the level
of misstatement and
managements attitude
towards risks and
adjustments.

We set performance
materiality at 75%
based on our
expectation of the level
of misstatement and
managements attitude
towards risks and
adjustments.

We set performance
materiality at 75%
based on our
expectation of the level
of misstatement and
managements attitude
towards risks and
adjustments.

We set performance
materiality at 75%
based on our
expectation of the level
of misstatement and
managements attitude
towards risks and
adjustments.

Component materiality

For the purposes of our Group audit opinion, we set materiality for each significant component of the Group based on a percentage
of materiality dependent on the size and our assessment of the risk of material misstatement of that component. Component
materiality ranged from 20% to 95% (2021: 20% to 95% ) of Group materiality, being £98,000 to £520,000 (2021: £107,000 to
£510,000). In the audit of each component, we further applied performance materiality levels of 75% (2021: 75%) of the component
materiality to our testing to ensure that the risk of errors exceeding component materiality was appropriately mitigated.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all individual audit differences in excess of £27,000 (2021:
£16,000). We also agreed to report differences below this threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

39

SINIWILVLIS TVIONYNIL | 140d3d TVNNNY 2202

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members of Dianomi plc continued

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2006 and ISAs (UK) to report on certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

Directors’ report
P . the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in
the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Matters on which we are We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
required to report by 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
exception
P . adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
. the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the statement of Directors’ responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates
through discussion with management, and the Audit Committee and our knowledge of the industry. We focused on significant laws
and regulations that could give rise to material misstatement in the financial statements, including the Companies Act 2006, UK
Listing Rules, the applicable accounting frameworks, Corporate Tax and Health and Safety legislation and the Bribery Act 2010.

Our procedures in respect of the above included:

. A review of minutes of meetings held by those charged with governance for any instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations;

. Holding discussions with management and the those charged with governance, and reviewing minutes of meetings between
the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee to identify any known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations;
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Involvement of corporate tax specialists in the audit to assess compliance with relevant tax legislation; and

Review of financial statement disclosures and agreeing to supporting documentation.

Fraud

We assessed the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud may occur. We determined
the fraud risk areas to be management override of controls and revenue recognition (existence).

Our procedures in response to the above included:

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, who
were deemed to have the necessary competence and capabilities, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations
in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’'s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Smithson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Enquiries with those charged with governance and the directors as to any known or suspected fraud;

Review of minutes of Board meetings throughout the year to corroborate our enquiries with those charged with governance and
the directors;

Evaluating and where appropriate, challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in determining significant
accounting estimates;

Testing a sample of journal entries throughout the year, which met a defined risk criteria, by agreeing to supporting
documentation; and

In respect of the risk of fraud in revenue recognition, we have performed the procedures set out in the key audit matters section
of our report.
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For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK
Date: 19 April 2023

BDO LLPis a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).



Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Year ended  Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Revenue 4 ESeIS 35,782
Cost of sales (26,127) (25,455)
Gross profit 9,788 10,327
Administrative expenses 7 (8,981) (10,264)
Other gains and losses 136 18
Costs relating to IPO 3 - (837)
Other income S} 167 -
Fair value movements - @1
Operating profit/(loss) 1,110 (577)
Depreciation 14 107 154
Share-based payments 24 526 2,854
Costs relating to IPO 3 = 637
Other income 6 167) -
Adjusted EBITDA 1,576 3,068
Finance income 10 41 S
Finance expense 10 @ (46)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 1,147 (618)
Taxation 11 (B62) 122
Profit/(loss) for the year 485 (496)
Other comprehensive income items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences 651 44
Total comprehensive income/(loss) income for the year
attributable to the owners of the company 1136 452)
Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (p) 13 1.62 a1.77)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (p) 13 146 1.77)

All operations are continuing operations.

The notes on pages 46 to 64 form part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Right-of-use asset 14 213 -
Total non-current assets 213 -
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 7,874 7,395
Deferred tax asset 12 675 675
Cash and cash equivalents 17 11,663 10,278
Total current assets 20,212 18,348
Total assets 20,425 18,348
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (8,048) (8,081)
Corporation tax payable (371) (142)
Lease liabilities 19 (219) -
Total current liabilities (8,638) (8,223)
Total liabilities (8,634) (8,223)
Net assets 11,787 10,125
Equity
Share capital 23 60 60
Share premium account 5,436 5,436
Share options reserve 3,380 2,854
Foreign currency reserve 139 (512)
Capital redemption reserve = -
Retained earnings 2,772 2,287
Total equity attributable to the owners of the company 11,787 10,125

The financial statements of Dianomi plc (Company number 04513809) were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for
issue on 19 April 2023.

They were signed on its behalf by:

Charlotte Stranner, Chief Financial Officer
19 April 2023

The notes on pages 46 to 64 form part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Share Capital Share Foreign
Share premium redemption options currency Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2022 60 5,436 - 2,854 (512) 2,287 10,125
Comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period - - - - - 485 485
Currency translation differences - - - - 651 - 651
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 651 485 1136
Transactions with owners of the Company
Share-based payment credit - - - 526 - - 526
Total transactions with owners of the
Company - - - 526 - - 526
Balance at 31 December 2022 60 5,436 - 3,380 139 2,772 11,787
Balance at 1 January 2021 - 1,085 - - (556) 2,783 3,312
Comprehensive income for the period
Loss for the period - - - - - (496) (496)
Currency translation differences - - - - 44 - 44
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - 44 (496) 452)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Shares issued 60 4,947 - - - - 5,007
Transaction costs - (596) - - - - (596)
Share-based payment credit - - - 2,854 - - 2,854
Total transactions with owners of the
Company 60 4,351 - 2,854 - - 7,265
Balance at 31 December 2021 60 5,436 - 2,854 (512) 2,287 10,125

The notes on pages 46 to 64 form part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

Year ended  Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 1147 (618)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation - leased assets 107 154
Interest payable 4 46
Interest receivable (41) 5)
Increase in trade and other receivables “478) (1,489)
Increase in trade and other payables 185 2,445
Other income (187)
Net fair value gain recognised in P&L = 21
Share-based payment charge 526 2,854
Cash generated from operating activities 1283 3,408
Taxation paid (269) (793)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,014 2,615
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 41 S
Net cash generated from investing activities 41 5
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares = 4411
Loan repayment - (1,250)
Interest paid - 4a4)
Interest paid in respect of leases 4 @)
Capital payments in respect of leases (108) (160)
Net cash generated (used in)/generated from financing activities (110) 2,955
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 945 5,575
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 10,278 4,722
Exchange movement on cash 440 19)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 11,663 10,278

The notes on pages 46 to 64 form part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements

1. General information

Dianomi plc (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries’ (together the “Group”) principal activity is the delivery of premium native advertising
for the financial services, technology, corporate and lifestyle sectors. The Company was incorporated on 16 August 2002 in England
and Wales as a private company limited by shares under the name Data-ID Limited. On 17 December 2002, the Company changed
its name to Dianomi Limited. On 17 May 2021, the Company re-registered as a public limited company and changed its name to
Dianomi plc.

The address of the registered office is 6th Floor, 60 Gracechurch Street, London, EC3V OHR and the limited company number is
04513808.

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

2.1. Basis of preparation

The financial report for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention
and with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and with UK
adopted International Financial Reporting International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

The profit before charging interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, share-based payment charges, other, non-recurring income
and exceptional costs (adjusted EBITDA) is presented in the income statement as the Directors consider this performance
measure provides a more accurate indication of the underlying performance of the Company and is commonly used by City
analysts and investors.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial information, are disclosed in note 3.

The presentational and functional currency of the Company is sterling. Results in these financial statements have been
prepared to the nearest £1,000.

2.2. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial information incorporates the financial information of Dianomi Plc and all of its subsidiary
undertakings. Subsidiary undertakings include entities over which the Group has effective control, which in Dianomi's case are
Dianomi Inc. and Dianomi Pty Ltd. The Group controls a group when it is exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from its
involvement with the Group and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the Group. In assessing control, the
Group takes into consideration potential voting rights.

2.3. Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2022 the Company had cash and cash equivalents of £11.7 million (2021; £10.3 million) and net current assets
of £11.8 million (2021: £10.1 million). The Group has no debt outstanding or facilities in place (2021: £nil).

The Directors have prepared detailed cash flow forecasts for the next 18 months that indicate the existing activities of the Group
do not require additional funding during that period. The forecasts are challenged by various downside scenarios to stress test
the estimated future cash position. The Directors are pleased to note that the stress tests did not have a significant impact on
the cash flow or cash position of the Group. In addition, current trading is in line with the forecast.

Post year end, in March 2023, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation announced that it had been appointed receiver to
SVB Financial Group ("SVB") and the Bank of England announced that it intended to apply to the Court to place Silicon Valley
Bank UK Limited (SVBUK') into a Bank Insolvency Procedure. At the time of the announcements, Dianomi had £3.9 million in
deposits across SVB and SVBUK. Shortly thereafter SVBUK was acquired by HSBC UK Bank Plc and the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") and other regulators guaranteed all depositors in SVB, with First Citizens Bank subsequently
acquiring Silicon Valley Bridge Bank, N.A. from the FDIC, meaning that all deposits were safe and secure.

2.4. Principal Accounting Policies

241 Revenue

The Group's customers are direct advertisers, affiliate advertisers and advertising agencies with whom the Group will
enter into a contract or insertion order.

The Group generates revenue by charging advertisers for advertising campaigns delivered through its platform. The
customer's total spend on advertising is determined by multiplying an agreed performance metric option, such as cost per
mil (CPM), cost per impression (CPI), cost per click (CPC) or cost per action (CPA) with the volumes of units delivered.
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Revenue is recognised on completion of the performance criteria which, in most cases, is when an internet user clicks
through to an advertisement that has been displayed on a web page.

Where advanced payments are made in advance of satisfying the performance obligation, these amounts are transferred
to deferred revenue (contract liabilities) and recognised when the performance obligation has been met.

The Group's standard payment terms require settlement of invoices within 60-90 days of receipt.

The Group does not adjust the transaction price for the time value of money as it does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the promised services to the client and the payment by the client exceeds one
year.

2.4.2. Cost of sales
Cost of sales represents the direct expenses that are attributable to the services sold. They consist primarily of payments

to publishers under the terms of the revenue share agreements that the Group has with them. Depending on the terms of
the revenue share agreements, cost of sales can include commissions where applicable.

In limited instances, the Company incurs costs with publishers based on a guaranteed minimum rate of payment from the
Company in exchange for guaranteed placement of the Company’s promoted recommendations on specified portions of
the publisher’s online properties. These guaranteed rates are typically either a minimum monthly payment or a minimum
CPM and are recognised as an expense as incurred.

2.4.3. Taxation
Current tax is the tax currently payable based on the taxable profit for the year.

The Group recognises current tax assets and liabilities of entities in different jurisdictions separately as there is no legall
right of offset.

The Group's US subsidiary does not charge US sales tax on its services as it provides non-taxable services.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases, except when, at the initial recognition of the asset or liability, there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or
loss under a business combination. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been substantially
enacted by the statement of financial position date, and that are expected to apply when the temporary difference
reverses.

Tax losses available to be carried forward, and other tax credits to the Group, are recognised as deferred tax assets, to the
extent that it is probable that there will be future taxable profits against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of the tax expense in the statement of
comprehensive income, except where they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
related deferred tax is also charged or credited directly to equity.

2.4.4. Development costs

Costs relating to the ongoing support and development of the Group's platform are recognised as an expense in profit and
loss as incurred.

2.4.5. Foreign currency translation

a) Function and presentational currency

Items included in the financial information of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
information is presented in ‘sterling’, which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group's presentation
currency.

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into sterling at rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place. All assets and liabilities of overseas operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on translating the opening net assets at opening rate and
the results of overseas operations at actual rate are recognised in other comprehensive income.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial
StOtemehtS continued

2.4.6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions.

2.4.7. Financial Instruments

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial instruments
are recognised on trade date when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not a fair value through profit
and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument. Financial
instruments are derecognised on the trade date when the Group is no longer a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables. All financial instruments held are classified as loans and receivables.

a) Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs. Trade
and other payables are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any expected credit
losses in the case of trade receivables. If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if
payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
performance obligation has been met.

c) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at the present value of future payments discounted at a market
rate of interest. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised costs using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits.

e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments comprise economic hedges. Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative
instruments that economically hedge financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in
the fair value of such derivatives are recognized in profit or loss under financing income or expenses.

24.8. Leases

The Group leases property in the UK, US and Australia.

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
. Leases of low value assets; and

. Leases with a duration of twelve months or less.

These leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. This is

3.0 per cent. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an
index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received,
and increased for:

. Lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

. Initial direct costs incurred; and
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. The amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove or restore
the leased asset (typically leasehold dilapidations).

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the
balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be
shorter than the lease term.

No lease modification or reassessment changes have been made during the reporting period from changes in any lease
terms or rent charges.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share on an IFRS basis. In calculating the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period, any share restructuring is adjusted to allow comparability with other periods. The
calculation of diluted earnings per share assumes conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, which arise from
share options outstanding.

2.4.10. Financing income and expel

Financing expenses comprise interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and leases recognised in
the income statement using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and not foreign
exchange losses that are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financing income includes interest receivable on funds invested. Interest income and interest payable are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income as they accrue, using the effective interest method.

2.4.11. Costs relating to IPO

Items which are material because of their size or nature and which are non-recurring are highlighted separately on the
face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The separate reporting of exceptional items helps provide
a better picture of the Group’s underlying performance. Iltems which have been included within this category are the costs
relating to the Company’s IPO on AIM in May 2021. The costs specifically related to the issue of new shares have been set
against share premium. Other IPO costs which related to listing both new and existing shares were allocated on a 50/50
basis between exceptional P&L costs and share premium.

Costs relating to the IPO are excluded from the headline profit measures used by the Group and are highlighted separately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as management believe that they need to be considered
separately to gain an understanding the underlying profitability of the trading businesses.

2.4.12. Employee Bene

S

Post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution plan for its employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid the
Group has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income when they fall due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals as a liability in the Statement of
Financial Position. The assets of the plan are held separately from the Group in independently administered funds.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to
profit or loss over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of equity instruments expected to vest at each Statement of Financial Position date so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takes into account non-vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the
control of either party (such as a target based on an index) or factors which are within the control of one or other of
the parties (such as the group keeping the scheme open or the employee maintaining any contributions required by
the scheme).

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the modification, is also charged to profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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Notes to the Financial
Stdtements continued

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, profit or loss is charged with the fair value
of goods and services received.

2.5. Standards issued but not yet effective
The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following relevant standards and interpretations with effective dates as noted below

Effective date (for annual

Standard Key Requirements periods beginning on or
after)

IFRS 17 'Insurance contracts’ as The standard establishes principles for the 1January 2023

amended in June 2020 by recognition, measurement, presentation and

amendments to IFRS 17, Insurance disclosure of insurance contracts issued. No impact is

Contract expected on the results of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of ~ The standard clarifies how conditions with which an 1January 2024

Liabilities as Current or Non-current entity must comply within twelve months after the

reporting period affect the classification of a liability.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of ~ The standard makes it clear that accounting policies 1 January 2023

Financial Statements and IFRS governing material balances are not necessarily

Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of themselves material. Therefore the quantity of

Accounting Policies accounting policy disclosures may reduce.

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting The standard introduces a new definition for 1January 2023
Policies, Changes in Accounting accounting estimates. No impact is expected on the

Estimates and Errors: Definition of results of the Group.

Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax The standard clarifies how companies account for 1 January 2023
related to Assets and Liabilities arising  deferred tax on transactions such as leases and

from a Single Transaction decommissioning obligations.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability The standard clarifies how a seller-lessee 1 January 2024
in a Sale and Leaseback subsequently measures sale and leaseback

transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15
to be accounted for as a sale.

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-Current The standard clarifies how conditions with which an 1 January 2024
Liabilities with Covenants entity must comply within twelve months after the
reporting period affect the classification of a liability.

The new standards, listed above, are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.6. Alternative performance measures

In order to provide better clarity to the underlying performance of the Group, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per share
are used as alternative performance measures. These measures are not defined under IFRS. These non-GAAP measures are
not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, any IFRS measures of performance, but have been included as the Directors
consider adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per share to be key measures used within the business for assessing the
underlying performance of the Group’s ongoing business across periods. Adjusted EBITDA excludes from operating profit non-
cash depreciation, share-based payment charges, other, non-recurring income and non-recurring exceptional costs. Adjusted
EPS excludes from profit after tax share-based payment charges, other, non-recurring income and non-recurring exceptional
items and their related tax impacts. Please refer to note 8 for reconciliations to Alternative Performance Measures ("APMs").
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3.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial information requires the Directors to make estimates and judgements that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, costs and revenue in the consolidated financial information. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. The judgements, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. The judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial information are:

Estimations:

.

Share-based payments: the Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair
value of equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes
model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted and requires assumptions to be
made in particular the value of the shares at the date of options granted. Management have had to apply judgement when
selecting assumptions.

Receivables provision: the Group reviews the amount of credit loss associated with its trade receivables, intercompany
receivables and other receivables based on historical default rates as well as forward looking estimates that consider current
and forecast credit conditions.

Judgements:

.

Deferred tax: the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that
future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be
utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties.

Going concern: The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis based on a judgement by the
Directors that the Group will continue to be able to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future, being a period
of at least 18 months from the date of signing these financial statements. In this context, the Directors have prepared detailed
cash flow forecasts for the next 18 months that indicate the existing activities of the Group do not require additional funding
during that period. The forecasts were challenged by various downside scenarios to stress test the estimated future cash
position. The Directors note that the stress tests did not have a significant impact on the cash flow or cash position of the Group.
In addition, current trading is in line with the forecast.

Treatment of costs incurred on the equity raise: the decision of how to split the costs incurred on an equity raise via IPO requires
judgement given that, whilst costs incurred on an equity raise should be recognised against equity in share premium, costs that
relate to a stock market listing should be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Costs incurred
relating to Admission were split as follows:

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Share Premium = 5396
Statement of Comprehensive Income = 637
.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... s
4. Revenue
Revenue arises from:
Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
EMEA 6,591 7149
US.A. 28,317 27,451
APAC 1,007 1,182

ol

SINIWILVLIS TVIONYNIL | 140d3d TVNNNY 2202



Notes to the Financial
Stdtemehts continued

S. Operating segments

The Group is operated as one global business by its executive team, with key decisions being taken by the same leaders irrespective
of the geography where work for clients is carried out. The Directors consider that the geographies where the Group operates have
similar economic and operating characteristics and the products and services provided in each region are all related to premium
native advertising. Management therefore consider that the Group has one operating segment. The Group report is presented and
measured to the Board as a single segment and is consistent with the financial statements. As such, no additional disclosure has
peen recorded under IFRS 8.

6. Otherincome

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Other income 167 -
eveeressessesserersesssasssestesreserteraesasaaterteraesasaeae Rt reResReRaeRaeRreR e ReR R e R e e R e SRSt e Rt e e R e Re Rt e st s aeseraeraerassreseraerassasaassastersesassassessesressssassesesse NN | R o
Other income in the year ended 31 December 2022 related to a tax refund as a result of an R&D tax credit.
7. Administrative expenses
Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Direct staff costs 5167 4,702
IT and software costs 1273 834
Legal and professional 754 805
Rent 239 106
Insurance 186 30
Depreciation - leased assets 107 154
Foreign exchange losses 33 90
Share-based payments 526 2,854
Other administrative expenses 696 529
treeressesussseisessesesaesassrestesertersciessessontestessesesaetestesaesesaestertesteseaeraesseRaesertersesasaaaeRtersesasseaestestesaeseraerssstesssserssrsssassasasssersesasseseesee NENNNEE L e 10864
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors as detailed below:
Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Audit fees 118 75
Other services:
Tax compliance IS 11
Transfer pricing advice = 12
Agreed upon procedures on interim results 15 19
e rervesseserraseesesatssesessrraentisseaessestestersesenassaerterteerasranstestesesseraerssRasaetertesaesassertestesresesaeraessssresersersssassassestersesassassessesressesasaesecsse NN L o

8. Reconciliations to Alternative Profit Measures

In order to provide better clarity to the underlying performance of the Group, Dianomi uses adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings
per share as alternative performance measures. These measures are not defined under IFRS. These non-GAAP measures are not
intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, any IFRS measures of performance, but have been included as the Directors consider
adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per share to be key measures used within the business for assessing the underlying
performance of the Group’s ongoing business across periods. Adjusted EBITDA excludes non-cash depreciation charges, share-
based payment charges, other, non-recurring income and non-recurring exceptional costs from operating profit. Adjusted EPS
excludes share-based payment charges, other, non-recurring income and non-recurring exceptional items and their related tax
impacts from profit after tax.
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The table below sets out the reconciliation of the Group's adjusted EBITDA and adjusted profit before tax from profit before tax.

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,147 (618)
Adjusting items:
Costs relating to the IPO = 637
Share-based payments 526 2,854
Other income 167) -
Adjusted profit before tax 1,506 2,873
Depreciation 107 154
Net finance (income)/expense 37) 41
Adjusted EBITDA 1576 3,068

The table below sets out the reconciliation of the Group's adjusted profit after tax to adjusted profit before tax.

Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

Adjusted profit before tax 1,506 2,873
Tax (expense)/credit (662) 122
Tax impact of adjusting items (B8) (B877)
Adjusted profit after tax 776 2,318

Adjusted profit after tax is used in calculating adjusted basic and adjusted diluted EPS. Adjusted profit after tax is stated before
adjusting items and their associated tax effects. Adjusted EPS is calculated by dividing the adjusted profit after tax for the period
attributable to Ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Adjusted
diluted EPS is calculated by dividing adjusted profit after tax by the weighted average number of shares adjusted for the impact of
potential ordinary shares. Potential Ordinary shares are treated as dilutive when their conversion to Ordinary shares would decrease
EPS. Please refer to note 13 for further detail.

9. Employee information

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as follows:

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
Number Number
Directors 7 7
Employees € 34
46 41

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons (including directors) were as follows:
Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 4,537 4,226
Social security costs 569 408
Pension costs 61 69
Share-based payment expense 526 2,854
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A defined contribution pension scheme is operated by a third party and the Group pays contributions on behalf of the employees.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension charge
represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund. Contributions amounting to £nil were payable to the fund at the end of
2022 (2021: £nil).

Key management personnel include employees across the Group who together have authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group. Key management personnel are considered to be the executive directors of the
Group and details regarding their remuneration are set out below:

FYa2
Bonus/
Salary Commission Benefits Pension Total
Name £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Rupert Hodson 220 = 11 2 233
Charlotte Stranner 180 = = 1 181
Raphael Queissert! 220 = 7 3 230
Robert Cabell de Marcellus!” 220 - 2 4 226
Total 840 - 20 10 870
FYa21
Bonus/
Salary Commission Benefits Pension
Name £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
Rupert Hodson 205 & 7 2
Charlotte Stranner'® 133 53 - 1
Raphael Queisser 205 S 4 4
4

Robert Cabell de Marcellus 205 96 4

[1] Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus stepped down from the board and from their positions as COO and CTO respectively on
15 March 2023.

[2]  Charlotte Stranner joined the board on 27 April 2021.
The highest paid director received remuneration of £233k (2021: £310k). No share options were exercised by the directors in the year
(2021 nil).

10. Finance income and expenses

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000

Interest received 41 S

Tc 5
[oon note interest = 44
On lease liability 4 2
T, expense .................................................................................................................................................................................................... .
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11. Taxation

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year = -
Adjustments in respect of prior periods = -
Fore|gnth ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Foreign tax on income for the year 662 553
N e
e R
Origination and reversal of timing differences = (B675)
B e R ( 675)
qua'aononproﬁtonord|nqryact|v|t|es ..................................................................................................................................... . p— (122)

Reconciliation of tax expense

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary activities for the year is higher than (2021: lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19% (2021: 19%).

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 1147 (618)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities multiplies by standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 19% (2021: 19%) 218 [(NES)]
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16 657
Foreign tax 321 225
Difference in tax rates - (96)
Deferred tax not recognised 107 (790)
Tax on profit 662 (122)
12. Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Asset
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Tox losses 675 675
675 675

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. There is a potential additional deferred tax asset of £1.3 million in respect of tax
losses of £5.1 million which has not been recognised due to a prudent approach being taken as to the timing and level of future
taxable profits.
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13. Earnings per share

The Group presents non-adjusted and adjusted basic and diluted earnings/loss per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS takes into consideration the Company's dilutive contingently issuable shares. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the diluted EPS calculation is inclusive of the number of share options that are expected to vest subject to
performance criteria as appropriate, being met.

The profit/(loss) and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below:

Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Profit/(loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Group used in calculating
basic and diluted EPS 485 (496)
Basic earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (p) 1.62 1.77)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per ordinary share (p) 1.46 1.77)
Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
Adjusted basic and diluted EPS £000 £000
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating adjusted EPS:
Profit/(loss) attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Group used in calculating
basic and diluted EPS 485 (496)
Adjusting items:
Share-based payments 526 2,854
Costs relating to the IPO = 637
Other income 187) -
Tax impact of adjusting items (68) (.77)
Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Group used in calculating
adjusted basic and diluted EPS 776 2,318
Adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share (o) 2.58 8.27
Adjusted diluted earnings per ordinary share (p) 2.34 7.65
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating
non-adjusted and adjusted basic EPS 30,027,971 28,024,038
Weighted share option dilution impact 3,184,268 2,264,678
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the denominator in calculating
non-adjusted and adjusted diluted EPS 33,212,239 30,288,716
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14. Right-of-use assets
Leased property

£000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 -
Additions 257
L Do S
AtlJonuoryaoeg ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... B
Additions 320
] Do
Deprec|qt|on .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................
At 1 January 2021 103
Depreciation charge 154
g e
AtlJonuory2022 ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... o
Depreciation charge 107
gy
Mot Bl vl
At 31 December 2021 -
] Do

During the year the Company entered into an 18 month lease for its serviced office premises in London. The total payments due
under the term of the lease amount to £0.3 million. Lease liabilities in respect of right-of-use assets were £0.2 million as at

31 December 2022 (2021: £nil). The discount rate used in determining the present value of the lease liability was 3%. The interest
expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £4k (2021: £2k).

15. Subsidiaries

The undertakings in which the Group’s interest at the year-end is 20 per cent. or more are as follows:

Country of At 31 Dec At 31 Dec
Subsidiary undertakings incorporation Principal activity 2022 2021
Dianomi Inc United States  Business support services 100% 100%
Dianomi PTY Australia Business support services 100% 100%

The registered office of Dianomi Inc is Corporate Service Bureau Inc., 28 Old Rudnick Lane, Dover, Delaware 19901. The registered
office of Dianomi PTY is ALM Williams Partners, Level 2, 570 St Kilda Road, Melbourne, VIC 3004.

16. Trade and other receivables

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000

Current
Trade receivables 7488 7,169
Prepayments 116 59
Loan receivable 52 g7
Other receivables 218 70
7,874 7,395

All of the trade receivables were non-interest bearing and receivable under normal commercial terms. The directors consider that
the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

The loan receivable balances relate to a loan owed from Buckingham Gate Financial Services Limited, a shareholder and related
party. The loan accrues annual interest at 4%.
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The expected credit loss on trade and other receivables was not material at the current or prior year end. For analysis of the
maximum exposure to credit risk, please refer to note 21.

The impairment loss recognised in the income statement for the period in respect of bad and doubtful trade receivables was £52k
(2021: £17k).

The ageing of trade receivables is detailed below:

As at 31 December 2022
<30 days <60 days <90 days <180 days > 180 days Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount 3,626 1743 814 456 849 7,488
As at 31 December 2021
<30 days <60 days <90 days <180 days > 180 days Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross carrying amount 3,920 1459 889 407 484 7169
17. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 11,663 10,278

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates. Post year end, in March 2023, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation announced that it had been appointed receiver to SVB Financial Group ("SVB") and the Bank of England
announced that it intended to apply to the Court to place Silicon Valley Bank UK Limited ('SVBUK") into a Bank Insolvency Procedure.
At the time of the announcements, Dianomi had £3.9 million in deposits across SVB and SVBUK. Shortly thereafter SVBUK was
acquired by HSBC UK Bank Plc and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC") and other regulators guaranteed alll
depositors in SVB, with First Citizens Bank subsequently acquiring Silicon Valley Bridge Bank, N.A. from the FDIC, meaning that all
deposits were safe and secure.

18. Trade and other payables

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Current liabilities
Trade payables 3,035
Other taxes and social security costs 116
Contract liabilities 104
Other payables and accruals 4,793

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates to book value at each year end. Trade payables are non-interest bearing
and are normally settled monthly.

19. Lease liabilities

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 219 -
erveseeseessesensesessisaenassressesertersesasaasterterresasaeaertesteResReRaerteRreR e ReR s e R e eR e Re Rt e Rt e s e sasReRbe st s aeseaeraerassreseraerassassassastersesassassestesressssasaesesse NN L e e
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The Group leases an office building in London for use by its staff. The discount rate used in determining the present value of lease
liabilities was the Group's incremental borrowing rate of 3%. The interest expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £4k (2021: £2k). Payments of £106k (2021: £160k) in respect of
rental payments paying down lease liabilities have been recognised in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

All other leases are considered short term as the lease terms are 12 months or less. The total amount recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of short term leases is £2339k (2021: £88k). Remaining commitments on short term
leases are recorded below.

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

Within one year 27 175

20. Financial instruments

The Group's and Company's financial instruments may be analysed as follows:

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Cash at bank and in hand 11,663 10,278
Trade receivables 7488 7169
Loan receivable 52

Other receivables 218

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Trade payables 3,035 3,780
Other payables and accruals 4,793 3,697
ereseasaressiseses et ertetesesressaseseasasasesesstititstItItItItttesesIReseseseaTaTasESRTRTRTReR TR TR LI e Lt s s sesaeseseasasasessesesesesesasesestsrsrssssasssnsasasasassaseseseses SN B S

The Group's income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss realised a
fair value loss of £nil (2021: gain of £21k).

21. Financial risk management

The Group and Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments which result from its
operating activities. All of the Group's financial instruments are classified as loans and receivables. The Group does not actively
engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
are described below:

Credit risk

Generally the Group’s and Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of the financial assets
recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

Trade receivables 7488 7169
Other receivables 386 167
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Credit risk is the risk of financial risk to the Group and Company if a counter party to a financial instrument fails to meets its
contractual obligation. The nature of the Group's and Company’s debtor balances, the time taken for payment by clients and the
associated credit risk are dependent on the type of engagement.

The Group's and Company's trade and other receivables are actively monitored. The ageing profile of trade receivables is monitored
regularly by Directors. Any debtors over 60 days are individually reviewed by Directors every month and explanations sought for any
balances that have not been recovered.

Unbilled revenue is recognised by the Group and Company only when all conditions for revenue recognition have been met in line
with the Group’s accounting policy.

The Directors are of the opinion that there is no material credit risk at group level.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The

Group seeks to manage financial risks to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest cash assets
safely and profitably.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, because the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities at 31 December 2022

Carrying

Between Between Total amount

Less than 6-12 land 2 2and 5 Over5 contractual (assets)/

6 months months years years years cashflows Liabilities

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables 8,048 8,048 8,048

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities at 31 December 2021

Carrying

Between Between Total amount

Less than B6-12 land 2 2and 5 Over5 contractual (assets)/
6 months months years years years cashflows Liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other payables

Tot

Interest rate risk
As at 3lst December 2022 and 2021 the Group has no interest rate risk exposure as the Group had no debt outstanding.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily US
Dollars and Australian Dollars. The Group monitors exchange rate movements closely and occasionally enters into forward contract
agreements to hedge against the potential volatility of unfavourable foreign exchange rates. The Group ensures adequate funds are
maintained in appropriate currencies to meet known liabilities. The Group also has trade receivable balances in foreign currency and
monitors the potential effect of any exchange rate movements on these balances.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the respective reporting period, expressed in Currency Units, was as
follows:

As at 31 Dec 2022

£000
uUsD CAD EUR AUD INR SGD
Cash & cash equivalents 11,017 1170 249 825 - 265
As at 31 Dec 2021
£000
uUsD CAD EUR AUD INR SGD
Cash & cash equivalents 7,486 84 731 727 914 225

Dianomi



The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on the relationship between the functional currencies of the Group companies and the
other currencies in which the Group’s material assets and liabilities are denominated. The table below summaries the effect on profit
and loss had the functional currency of the Group weakened or strengthened against these other currencies, with all other variables
held constant.

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

10% weakening of functional currency 183 191
10% strengthening of functional currency (180) (15B)

The impact of a change of 10% has been selected as this has been considered reasonable given the current level of exchange rates
and the volatility observed both on a historical basis and market expectations for future movements.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of all financial assets and liabilities approximates their carrying value.
Capital risk management policy
The Group's capital management objectives are:

. to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders

. maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Group considers its capital comprises share capital plus all reserves, which amounted to £11.8 million as at 31 December 2022
(2021: £10.1 million).

The Group has no debt facilities in place as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £nil). Management assesses the Group's capital
requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets.

22. Related party disclosures

Transactions with BGF are disclosed below:

Year ended  Year ended

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

Annual fee S0 50
Interest on loan notes = 42
S0 92

The amount due to BGF as at 31 December 2022 is £77k (2021: £27k). Up until the Company's IPO in May 2021, the annual fee
related to a management fee payable by the Company under the terms of the investment agreement between BGF and the
Company whereby BGF could appoint a representative to the Board. Following the Company’s IPO, the annual fee relates specifically
to Matthew Singh's (a representative of BGF) services as a Non-Executive Director.

The Group received revenues of £45k (2021: £76k) from Buckingham Gate Financial Services Limited, a company that is controlled by
the shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December 2022 there were trade receivables from Buckingham Gate Financial Services
Limited of £4k (31 December 2021: £7k). The Group also has a loan receivable from Buckingham Gate Financial Services Limited of
£52k as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: £37k), details of which are set out in note 16. Interest receivable of £3k accrued in
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: £5k).

6l
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23. Share capital
Ordinary Shares
Issued Nominal Issued
Shares Value Amount
Number £ £
As at 1 January 2021 18,345 0.01 184
Bonus issue 3,100,305 0.01 31,003
Redesignation of A, B and C ordinary shares to Ordinary Shares 1,859,514 0.01 18,595
Subtotal 4,978,164 0.01 49,782
Subdivision of ordinary shares 24,890,820 0.002 49,782
Issue of shares pursuant to exercise of options 3,305,650 0.002 6,611
Issue of shares pursuant to placing 1,831,501 0.002 3,663
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 30,027,971 0.002 60,056
A ordinary shares
Issued Nominal Issued
Shares Value Amount
Number £ £
As at 1 January 2021 10,361 0.01 104
Bonus issue 1,751,008 0.01 17,510
Redesignation to Ordinary Shares (1761,370) 0.01 (17.614)
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 - -
B ordinary shares
Issued Nominal Issued
Shares Value Amount
Number £ £
As at 1 January 2021 602 0.01 6
Bonus issue 101,738 0.01 1,017
Redesignation to Ordinary Shares (80,124) 0.01 (801)
Redesignation to deferred shares (22,216) 0.01 (222)
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 - -
C ordinary shares
Issued Nominal Issued
Shares Value Amount
Number £ £
As at 1 January 2021 106 0.01 1
Bonus issue 17914 0.01 179
Redesignation to Ordinary Shares (18,020) 0.01 (180)
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 - -
Deferred shares
Issued Nominal Issued
Shares Value Amount
Number £ £
As at 1 January 2021 - -
Redesignation of B ordinary shares 22,216 0.01 222
Repurchase of deferred shares (e2,218) 0.01 (222)
As at 31 December 2021, 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 - -
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On 6 May 2021, £49,708.66 of the available £1,084,776 of the Company’s share premium account was capitalised through the issue
of bonus ordinary shares of £0.01 each, A ordinary shares of £0.01 each ("A Shares”), B ordinary shares of £0.01 each ("B Shares”),
and C ordinary shares of £0.01 each (“C Shares") to existing shareholders pro rata to their holdings of ordinary shares of £0.01 each,
A Shares, B Shares and/or C Shares. The capitalisation resulted in an issued share capital of 3,118,650 ordinary shares of £0.01
each, 1,761,370 A Shares, 102,340 B Shares and 18,020 C Shares.

A new set of interim articles of association was adopted by the Company to reflect its re-registration as a public limited company
and the Company’s name was changed to Dianomi plc.

Immediately prior to the Company’s admission to trading on AIM ("Admission”) taking place, the A Shares and C Shares were
re-designated as ordinary shares of £0.01 each in the capital of the Company on the basis of one ordinary share of £0.01 per A
Share or C Share then in issue.

Immediately prior to Admission taking place, the 102,340 B Shares in issue after the bonus issue described above were
re-designated as 80,124 ordinary shares of £0.01 each and 22,216 deferred shares of £0.01 each in the capital of the Company.

Immediately after the re-designation of shares described above, each ordinary share of £0.01 was sub-divided into five ordinary
shares of £0.002 each.

Immediately on Admission taking place on 24 May 2021, all of the deferred shares of £0.01 each were repurchased by the Company
for an aggregate consideration of £1.00 to be satisfied in cash.

Furthermore, on Admission 1,831,501 new ordinary shares of £0.002 pence were issued pursuant to the placing, raising gross
proceeds of £5 million for the Company.

24. Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based remuneration scheme for employees. All UK employees are eligible to participate
in the long term incentive scheme, the only vesting condition being that the individual remains an employee of the Group over the ten
year vesting period.

The number of options and weighted average exercise price in the table below have not been adjusted to reflect the share capital
reorganisation in May 2021 as described in Note 23.

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price
(pence) Number (pence) Number
Dec 22 Dec 22 Dec 21 Dec 21
Outstanding at the beginning of the period 273 1,594,387 10 3,627
Granted during the period 335 134,627 2259 1,982,826
Lapsed/exercised during the period EES (7.483) 0.2 (392,166)
Outstanding at the end of the period 278 1721551 273 1,594,387

Of the total number of options outstanding at the end of the period, Nil (31 Dec 21: Nil) had vested and were exercisable at the end of
the year.

Certain options granted under the existing option schemes in place prior to the admission to trading on AIM of the Company's share
capital ("Admission”) were due to lapse on 17 May 2021, and all but two of these lapsing options were replaced with equivalent
options. Of the two other lapsing options, one of these was replaced with an option over a greater number of ordinary shares. All of
the options granted under the existing option schemes in place prior to Admission were exercised immediately on Admission.

On Admission, new option schemes were established and a total of 1,640,926 options were granted under these new option
schemes with an exercise price of 273p. During the year ended 31 December 2021, 46,539 options lapsed as a result of employees
leaving the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 134,627 options were granted with an exercise prices of 335 pence. 7,463 options lapsed
as a result of employees leaving the Group.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was used to value the equity-settles share-based payment awards as it was considered that
this approach would result in materially accurate estimate of the fair value of the options granted.
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The inputs into the model were as follows:

Post-IPO

Option

Scheme

Weighted average share price at grant date (£) 2.78

Weighted average exercise price (£) 2.78

Volatility (%) 44 .00%

Weighted average vesting period (years) 3

Risk free rate (%) 3.482%

Expected dividend yield (%) -
The share-based remuneration expense comprises:

As at As at

31 Dec 31 Dec

2022 2021

£000 £000

Equity-settled schemes 526 2,854

25. Reserves

Share Capital

Share capital represents the nominal value of share capital subscribed.

Share Premium

Share premium represents the funds received in exchange for shares over and above the nominal value, offset by costs incurred on
the raise of equity.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve is a non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred following the redemption or
purchase of the Company’s own shares.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences that arise on consolidation from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Retained earnings

The retained earnings reserve represents cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Share option reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents amounts accruing for equity settled share options granted plus the fair value of share
options exercised upon IPO.

26. Ultimate controlling party

There is no ultimate controlling party as at 31st December 2022 nor was there as at 31 December 2021.

27. Events after the balance sheet date

On 15 March 2023 the Company announced that Raphael Queisser and Robert Cabell de Marcellus were stepping down from the
board and their positions as COO and CTO respectively. The departures of Raphael and Cabell were part of an internal
reorganisation involving a number of other personnel changes in order to ensure the optimal structure for the Group and to align the
cost base to the current climate. The costs associated with the reorganisation, estimated to be circa £0.9 million will be classified as
exceptional in the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and excluded from alternative performance
measures such as Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EPS.

28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Group had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2022: £nil).

29. Capital Commitments
The Group's capital commitments at 31 December 2022 are £nil (31 December 2021: £nil).
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Company Financial Statements

Company Statement of Financial Position

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments 1 7 7
Right-of-use asset 213
Totql non_ C u rren t qssets ................................................................................................................................................................ 2 20 .......................... 7
Currentqssets .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Trade and other receivables 3 3110 3418
Deferred tax asset 4 675 675
Cash and cash equivalents 2 4178 4,498
Totqlcurrentassets ...................................................................................................................................................................... 7 9638591
Totqlqssets ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 81838598
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 (2,374) (2,353)
Corporation tax payable @) @)
Lease liability (219) -
Total current liabilities 2595)  (2.355)
Totql || ab| | mes .............................................................................................................................................................................. (2595)(2355) .
Net cs s e ts ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 5588 ................. 6 243 .
Equ|ty .........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Share capital 6 60 60
Share premium account 6 5,436 5,436
Share options reserve 3,380 2,854
Retained earnings (3,288) (2,107)
Total equity attributable to the owners of the company 5588 | 6243

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate statement of comprehensive income of the Company has not
been presented. The Company’s loss for the year was £1,181k (2020: loss of £1,726k).
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Share Capital Share
Share premium redemption options Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve earnings equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2022 60 5,436 - 2,854 (2,107) 6,243
Comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period - - - - 1181 1181)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Share-based payment credit - - - 526 - 526
T
B

Eomprehensive income for the period
Loss for the period - - - - (1,726) 1,726)

Transactions with owners of the Company

Shares issued 60 4,947 - - - 5,007
Transaction costs - (596) - - - (596)
Share-based payment credit - - - 2,854 - 2,854

T
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Notes to the Company
Financial Statements

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are presented in pound sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. They are
prepared under the historical cost basis, except that derivative financial instruments are stated at their fair value, and in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and the Companies Act 2006.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation
to share-based payments, financial instruments, leases, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of
certain assets, presentation of a cash flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and certain related party
transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement and statement of comprehensive income
for the Company has not been included in these Financial Statements. The principal accounting policies adopted are described
below. They have all been applied consistently to all years presented.

Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of services to the Company and its associates, other than
the audit of the Company’s Financial Statements, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a
consolidated basis in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting Policies
The following are key accounting policies for the Company:

. Basis of Preparation

. Going concern

. Trade receivables and payables
. Cash and cash equivalents

These policies of the company are consistent with those adopted by the Group and disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no new policies adopted within the year. The following are additional accounting policies that relate to the
Company:

Investments

Investments are stated at their cost less impairment losses.

Intercompany
Intercompany balances are intercompany loans, and comprise of amounts owed to/owing from subsidiaries. IFRS 9 expected
credit losses have been assessed as immaterial in relation to these balances.

Any key judgements or estimates are consistent with those adopted by the Group.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new standards and amendments which have not yet been adopted are disclosed in note 2.5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Company
FIhCIhCIC” St(]temehts continued

1. Investments

Investments
in subsidiary
companies
£000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021 7
At 31 December 2022 7
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 7
At 31 December 2021 7
The Company’s subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
2. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4178 4,498
3. Trade and other receivables
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade receivables 1,296 1,704
Prepayments SS 59
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1518 1517
Other receivables 237 138
3,110 3418
Amounts owed by group undertakings are repayable on demand and bear no interest.
4. Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Asset
As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000
Tax losses 675 675
675 675

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. There is a potential additional deferred tax asset of £1.3 million in respect of tax
losses of £5.1 million.

Dianomi



S. Trade and other payables

As at As at
31 Dec 31 Dec
2022 2021
£000 £000

Current
Trade payables VES 764
Accruals and deferred income 1,072 1,061
Other taxation and social security 110 224
Other payables 457 304
2,374 2,353

Amounts owed to group undertakings are repayable on demand and bear no interest.

6. Share Capital

Movements in the Company’s Share capital can be found at note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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